
              
 
 
 

www.sweetwatersprings.com 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 

September 2, 2021 Regular Meeting 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 

Meeting link:  
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?M

TID=m62756d0a1cc9ba72feb965f183ef9de6 
Meeting number: 2554 557 5848 

Password: jECeXs5Mg53 
 
 

OR 
 

Join by phone: +1-415-655-0001 US Toll 
Access code: 2554 557 5848 

Password: 53239756 
 
 

All guests that join the virtual meeting will be muted with their camera/ video turned off.  
Guest(s) will be unmuted and video turned on when they are speaking.  Proper decorum 

including appearance is required. 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda unless the Board President allows additional time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 

A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 

 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m62756d0a1cc9ba72feb965f183ef9de6
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m62756d0a1cc9ba72feb965f183ef9de6
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m62756d0a1cc9ba72feb965f183ef9de6


 2 

II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 

non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 

 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 5, 2021 Board Meeting and the August 26, 

2021 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  
 
Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting 
 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 

 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 

 
A. Discussion/Action re Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Est. time 10 min.)  

 
B. Discussion/Action re COVID-Related Issues (Est. time 15 min.) 

 
C. Discussion/Action re District Water Rights 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 21-16, State Revolving Fund Authorizing Resolution 

(Est. Time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re August Meeting with County Supervisor Hopkins (Est. time 15 

min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re CalPERS Valuation Report and District Unfunded Liability (Est 

time 15 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re District PARS Account withdrawal policy (Est. time 15 min.)  

 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 



 3 

 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 

 Title: General Manager 
 

ADJOURN 



 4 

Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  

• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 

GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 



 1 

 
 
 

 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2021 

 
(*In order discussed) 

 
August 5, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap (arr. 7 p.m.) 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer (arr. 6:34 p.m.) 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Mark O’Flynn 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.) 
 

The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 

p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
President Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Discussion ensued.  Director 
Spillane moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried 3-0.  The following items were approved: 
 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 1, 2021 Board Meeting and the July 8, 2021 
Special Board Meeting 

 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 
 
C. Receipt of items of Correspondence (None) 
 
  

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 



 2 

(None.) 
 
** Director Holmer arrived at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:35 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 21-13, Overruling 

Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs 
Water District.  President Robb-Wilder opened the Public Hearing at 6:35 p.m.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  There were no public comments.  President Robb-
Wilder closed the Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m.  Discussion ensued.  Director Holmer 
moved to approve Resolution 21-13, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on 
Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Director Lipinski seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.   

 
V-B. (6:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 21-14, Approving an Agreement with 

the County of Sonoma for Collection for Special Taxes, Fees, and Assessments.  .  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel 
Rachel Hundley.  Discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to approve Resolution 21-
14, Approving an Agreement with the County of Sonoma for Collection of Special Taxes, 
Fees, and Assessments.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 
V-C. (6:44 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Actual vs. Budgeted report – FYE 2020-21.  The 

GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-D. (6:53 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Drought update; Resolution 21-15, Declaring a 

Stage I Water Shortage.  The GM provided an overview of this item. 
 
** Director Schaap arrived at 7 p.m. 
 
 Discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 21-15, Declaring a 

Stage I Water Shortage.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  Further 
discussion ensued. 

 
V-E. (7:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re COVID-Related Re-Opening issues.  The GM 

provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Comments 
were made by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to eliminate 
the fourteen (14) days of Administrative Leave policy in the Emergency Response Plan 
effective September 1, 2021.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   

 
 
*** At 8:31 p.m. the Board took a break.  The meeting reconvened at 8:37 p.m. 
 
 
V-F. (8:38 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Discussion/Action re PARS Account Withdrawal 

for FY 2021-22 and withdrawal policy for future years.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken but this item was continued 
for further discussion at a future meeting.   

 
G. (8:56 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Contract and Task Order for Matthew Emrick, 

Esq.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken.  

 
H. (9:04 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Update on 17448 River Lane property.  The GM 

provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Mark 
O’Flynn.  Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 

 



 3 

I. (9:015 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re General Manager’s Performance Evaluation 
Form and Goals.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Schaap provided 
further overview.  Discussion ensued.  This item was agendized for further discussion at 
the September Board meeting.   

 
J. (9:20 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Coastland Engineering Task Order – Design for 

Moscow Road project.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken.   

 
 

VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:33 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. In-House Construction Projects 
6. Lower Russian River Community Advisory Group Governance Meeting 
7. Personnel 
8. Monte Rio Bridge 
9. Flume Pilot Project 
10. Gantt Chart 
11. Tax Lien List Approval 
12. CDBG Funding 
13. Economic Impact of No Disconnects for Non-payment 
 
 

VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:40 p.m.) 

 
Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be in Colorado from September 8-29. 
 
 

VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:42 p.m.) 
 

1. MR Bridge project 
2. CDBG grant application 
3. Drought issues 
4. Flume subsidy update 
5. Covid Office Re-Opening 
6. Water rights 

 
 

IX. CLOSED SESSION (9:45 p.m.) 
 
At 9:45 p.m., President Robb-Wilder announced the Closed Session item.  At 9:46 p.m. the Board 
went into Closed Session.  At 10:32 the meeting reconvened and the following action was 
announced: 
 

A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 
Title: General Manager  
No action was taken. 

 



 4 

ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:33 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 

 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        



 1 

 
 
 

 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: August 26, 2021 

 
(*In order discussed) 

 
August 26, 2021 
3:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap (arr. 4:13 p.m.) 
   
Board Members Absent: None. 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Jack Bushgen 
      Julie Kenny 
      Bryon Edgmon 
      Bernard O’Brien 
      Ryan Wilson 
      Jamin Reed 
      Nicole King 
      Victor Mendez 
      Andrea Crites 
      Steve Mack 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER (3:32 p.m.) 
 

The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 3:32 p.m.   
 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT (3:32 p.m.) 
 

(None.) 
 
 

III. ADMINISTRATIVE (3:32 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
III-A. (3:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Covid policy.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Jack Bushgen, Steve 
Mach, Victor Mendez, Bernard O’Brien, Julie Kenny, and Bryon Edgmon.  Comments were also 
made by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley. Director Robb-Wilder moved to reinstate the 14-day 
leave policy for Covid-related absences in the District’s Emergency Response Plan that had been 



 2 

rescinded at the August Board meeting.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  This 
item was continued for further discussion at the September 2, 2021 Regular Board meeting.   
 

ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 

 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:  Discussion/ Action re Water Shortage Contingency Plan  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report on the drought conditions and the 
Drought Emergency Declaration declared for Sonoma and Marin Counties, the 
State Water Board approved reduction in Russian River flows, the Curtailment 
Order issued by the State Water Board, and Phase I of the Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $172,837.00 if a 20% reduction is achieved for the balance of 
the calendar year. 
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
 The last two years have been record drought years.  Guerneville rain totals 
in 2019/2020 were just over sixteen inches, and in the 2020/2021 rain year 
(October 2020 – October 2021) have been just over fifteen inches.  The average 
annual rainfall for Guerneville is forty-four inches.  These record dry conditions 
have resulted in record low levels in Lake Sonoma and Lake Mendocino, the two 
primary lakes released into the Russian River.  These conditions are the worst on 
record, dating back to the 1930s dust bowl era.  Sweetwater Springs pumps from 
the underflow of the Russian River in Guerneville at the el Bonita well station and 
the Monte Rio well station.   
 

Due to the record two-year drought, Governor Newsome issued a drought 
emergency declaration on April 21, and the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
declared a drought emergency on April 27.  
 

The California State Water Resources Control Board ordered reductions on 
June 14 on minimum instream flows and (diversions on the Upper Russian River) 
from the Russian River as drought conditions worsen in the river’s watershed.  The 
temporary order lowers instream flow requirements to 35 cfs in the lower and 25 
cfs in the upper Russian River through the end of the calendar year.  It requires 
the Sonoma County Water Agency and its contractors to reduce diversions from  

 

 



WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN  
  2  
September 2, 2021 

 

 

the river by 20 percent from last year’s usage between July 1 and mid-December 
2021. 

The State Water Board meeting on June 16 approved a Resolution to adopt 
Emergency Regulations to address water shortages in the Russian River 
Watershed.  The approved Curtailment Order is attached.  The final order was 
issued the first week of July.  I spoke with Sam Boland-Brien, the chief Engineer 
in the Water Rights group working on this issue, to discuss the impacts on 
Sweetwater and help them understand our unique situation. The curtailment order 
does include the lower Russian River but does have exemptions for minimum 
human health and safety usage.  There are references to fifty-five gallons per 
capita per day limits on this type of usage.  One thousand five hundred curtailment 
order letters went out on August 2 for the upper river, and over three hundred 
letters went out on August 9 for the lower river.  The District WAS NOT on the list 
of curtailed water rights holders.  If we were, we would have been required to 
respond within seven days after receiving the letter and begin the human health 
and safety waiver process.  The data used to determine which water rights on the 
lower Russian River were curtailed is complex.  The criteria include dividing the 
lower Russian River into sub-sheds.   Sub-shed 21 was delineated to include 
SSWD.  Water rights were curtailed in sub-shed 21 back to 1992.  Our water rights 
license was perfected in 1976.   If SSWD achieves a twenty percent reduction for 
the balance of the calendar year, we could see a decrease in revenue of 
$172,837.00. 

To qualify for the curtailment orders’ human health and safety waiver 
limiting use to 55 gallons per capita usage and to show conservation during the 
drought, the District enacted our Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP).  
Reductions in water production in 2021 compared to June and July of 2020 have 
been 10% and 14.7%, respectively.  Water sales were down 3.3% in June and 
8.8% in July.    

  



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE COVID RELATED REOPENING 
ISSUES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discussion and direction from the Board. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
The District has followed Public Health direction from Federal, State, and 
Local Health Agencies.  These guidelines are referenced in our Emergency 
Response Plan and Resolution 21-06.  California relaxed many guidelines on 
June 15, including relaxing mask requirements.  The California Cal OSHA met 
on June 17 and approved similar relaxed requirements for the workplace.  
Vaccinated employees could then choose not to wear masks outside or inside.  
Non-vaccinated employees must continue to wear masks outside when near 
others and wear masks in the office.  The District has documented 
vaccination status through self-attestation.  The District continues to navigate 
these new guidelines and apply them to the District workplace and workforce.   
 
Among these issues is virtual vs. in-person Board meetings.  The Governor 
issued an Executive Order that ends the waiver of Brown Act Public Meeting 
requirements on September 30.  In consideration of Board meetings being 
held at the District offices, space is quite limited for social distancing.  I did 
speak with Danny with Ferrellgas, and he is following up on the maintenance 
of the air handling equipment.  I have asked about the availability of the 
Monte Rio Rec Building for our Board meetings.  One item to consider is 
creating a policy for anyone attending our in-person Board meetings to show 
proof of vaccination or a recent negative COVID test result.  
  
Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-42-20, known as the water shutoff 
moratorium, prevented public agencies from discontinuing water service 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. Under the Governor’s reopening plan, the 
shutoff moratorium provisions within Executive Order N-42-20 will also be 
lifted on September 30. Local agencies will still be required to adhere to all 
existing state laws and regulations related to utility shutoffs.  This lifting of 
the moratorium might preclude the need for the District to implement the tax 
lien procedure to collect delinquent bills.   

https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/4.2.20-EO-N-42-20.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/4.2.20-EO-N-42-20.pdf


COVID RELATED REOPENING ISSUES   
September 2, 2021  2 
 

 

 
Staff feedback on reopening the office space has ranged from deferring to 
office staff to open support of full reopening with no masking. 
 
On July 27, the CDC made recommendations for everyone to wear masks 
inside.  The County and State made indoor masking for everyone mandatory 
due to the spread of the Delta variant.   
 
Also, our Emergency Response Plan Covid section 15 allowed 14 days 
administrative leave if someone is positive for Covid or has been in contact 
with someone positive.  After Board direction, the 14 days leave policy will 
expire September 1, 2021.  The revised draft ERP is attached to this report. 
 
Reopening Plan:  Due to the constantly changing circumstances of the virus, 
lack of vaccinations of staff and a significant percentage of the public, and 
the risk due to the much more transmittable Delta variant, I recommend at 
this time to stay the course with no foot traffic and continued masking 
requirements as they evolve.   
 
The California Department of Public Health issued guidance on July 26, 2021, 
requiring State employees and all medical personnel to be vaccinated or be 
tested weekly if they are not vaccinated.  The Governor also asked private 
businesses to follow suit on this new mandate.  These new orders are due to 
the many-fold increases in cases, hospitalizations, and deaths due to the 
Delta variant. 
 
The District has closely followed what the County policies are on COVID.  On 
August 18, 2021, Paul Gullickson, the County Spokesperson, stated that the 
Board of Supervisors approved a policy that all County employees, including 
Sonoma County Water Agency, must show proof of vaccination or be tested 
for COVID weekly.  The Pfizer Covid vaccine was given full Federal FDA 
approval on August 23.  Adherence to Federal, State, and County guidelines 
are referenced in our Emergency Response Plan and Resolution 21-06.  The 
board needs to consider whether to follow the County policy on vaccination 
proof with an option for employees to submit weekly negative Covid testing 
results.    
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Preparedness  
Response  & Recovery Plan  

 
 

Updated September 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Sweetwater Springs Water District 
17081 Highway 116 • Suite  B Guerneville, CA 95446 

Phone 707.869.4000 • Fax 707.869.4005 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 2 
 

SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 
 
Important Phone Numbers, Email Addresses and Other Emergency Information 
 
Section No. 1 – Administrative 
 Preface 
 Points and Authorities 
 Mutual Aid Agreements 
  Resolution Adopting SEMS 
  WARN – Water Agency Response Network 
Section No. 2 – District Chain of Command 
Section No. 3 – Phone Lists 
 SSWD Staff and Responsibilities during an Emergency 
 Official Water System Quality Contacts 
 Emergency Services Providers 
 Automated Telephone Notification 
 Water System Technical Support Contacts 
 Utility and Supply Providers 
 Communications Service Providers 
 Lock Combinations 
 Media Contacts 
 Purchased Water Suppliers 
 Other Water Agencies 
 Board of Directors and Professional Staff 
 Official Posting Locations 
Section No. 4 – General Emergency Plan 
 Plan 
 Contact List 
Section No. 5 – Water Quality Notification Plan – Guerneville 
Section No. 6 – Water Quality Notification Plan – Monte Rio 
Section No. 7 – Boil Water Orders 
 Boil Water Order 
 Cancellation of Boil Water Order 
 Unsafe Water Alert 
 Cancellation of Unsafe Water Alert 
Section No. 8 – Office Power Outage Procedures  
Section No. 9 – El Bonita Power Outage Procedures 
 Emergency Generator During Power Outage 
 General Procedures 
 Generator Log and Checklist 
Section No. 10 – Monte Rio Power Outage Procedures 
 Emergency Generator During Power Outage 
 General Procedures 
Section No. 11 – Fire Emergency Plan 
Section No. 12 – Earthquake Emergency Plan 
Section No. 13 – Flood Emergency Plan 
 Well Field Flooding or High Turbidity Level, General Procedures, Power Outage Procedures 
Section No. 14 – El Bonita Flood Response Plan and Recovery 
Section No. 15 – Contagious Disease/ COVID-19 Emergency Plan 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 3 
 

 SECTION NO. 1  
 

Administrative 
PREFACE     
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING SEMS 
WARN – WATER AGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK    

  
 

PREFACE 
 
 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan is 
designed to address organized response to emergency situations associated with natural disasters, 
technological incidents, and national security emergencies in, or affecting the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District facilities and service area. 
 
The Emergency Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan has been prepared by Sweetwater 
Springs Water District personnel.  
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 4 
 

DISTRICT POLICY NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

5000.30 
EMERGENCY MEETINGS 

IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY SITUATION INVOLVING MATTERS UPON 
WHICH PROMPT ACTION IS NECESSARY, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MAY 
HOLD AN EMREGENCY SPECIAL MEETING WITHOUT COMPLYING WITH THE 
POSTING REQUIREMENTS FOR A SPECIAL MEEETING REQUIRED IN SECTION 
5000.21.  AN EMERGENCY SITUATION IMEANS A CRIPPLING DISASTER WHICH 
SEVERELY IMPAIRS PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR BOTH, AS ARE DETERMINED 
BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD. 

5000.31 
 

NEWSPAPERS OF SPECIAL CIRCULATION IN THE DISTRICT, RADIO STATIONS 
AND TELEVISION STATIONS WHICH HAVE REQUESTED NOTICE OF SPECIAL 
MEETING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54650 THROUGH 59426) SHALL BE NOTIFIED 
AT LEAST ONE HOUR PRIOR TO THE EMERGENCY SPECIAL MEETING.  IN THE 
EVENT THAT TELEPHONE SERVICES ARE NOT FUNCTIONING, THE NOTICE 
REQUIREMNT OF ONE HOUR IS WAIVED, BUT THE GENERAL MANAGER, OR 
HIS/HER DESIGHNEE, SHALL NOTIFY SUCH NESPAPERS, RADIO STATIONS, OR 
TELEVISION STATIONS OF THE FACT OF THE HOLDING OF THE EMERGENCY 
SPECIAL MEETING, AND OF ANY ACTION TAKEN BY THE BOARD AS SOON 
AFTER THE MEETING AS POSSIBLE. 

5000.32 NO CLOSED SESSION MAY BE HELD DURING AN EMERGENCY SPECIAL 
MEETING, AND ALL OTHER RULES GOVERNING SPECIAL MEETINGS SHALL BE 
OBSERVED WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS NOTICE.   
THE MINUTES OF THE EMERGENCY SPECIAL MEETING, A LIST OF THE 
PERSONS THE GENERAL MANAGER OR DESIGNEE NOTIFIED OR ATTEMPTED 
TO NOTIFY, A COPY OF THE ROLL CALL VOTE (S), AND ANY ACTIONS TAKEN 
AT SUCH MEETING SHALL BE POSTED FOR A MINUMUM OF TEN (10) DAYS IN 
THE DISTRICT OFFICE AS SOON AFTER THE MEETING AS POSSIBLE. 

GOVERNMENT CODES DESCRIPTION 

CA DISASTER SERVICES 
ACT, ARTICLE 9.5, SECTION 
8607 

REQUIRED USE OF SEMS – STANDARD EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM.  ONCE THE RESOLUTION ADOPTING SEMS HAS BEEN APPROVED 
BY THE BOARD, A CERTIFIED COPY OF THE RESOLUTION MUST BE 
FORWARDED TO THE CA OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES. 

CA TITLE I, DIV. 4,  
SECTION 3100, CHAPTER 8 

IDENTIFIES PUBLIC AGENCY EMPLOYEES AS DISASTER SERVICE WORKER 
(DSWS) AND REQUIRES THEM TO REMAIN AT OR RETURN TO WORK DURING 
EMERGENCIES.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RECEIVE PAY FOR THEIR SERVICES. 

  

  

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 5 
 

Resolution No. 09-26 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ADOPTING THE CALIFORNIA STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, MASTER 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT, AND OPERATIONAL AREA 

CONCEPTS 

 
WHEREAS Sweetwater Springs Water District facilities, properties, and employees are located 

where numerous natural or human caused catastrophes may occur and that could affect local or 
regional areas, and 
 

WHEREAS the greater efficiency for emergency and disaster preparedness, response, 
recovery, and mitigation can be achieved by joining efforts between all political subdivisions, including 
cities, counties, special districts, other public benefit non-profit corporations, and utilities in the 
development and implementation of operational areas; and 
 

WHEREAS the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) regulations identify the 
need for all political subdivisions within the geographical area of a county to establish an operational 
area to act as an intermediate level of the state emergency services organization to support local 
government before and during emergencies; and 
 

WHEREAS following the 1991 East Bay Hills Firestorm, the California Emergency Services Act 
was amended, creating SEMS (Government Code §8607) to ensure all responding agencies would 
plan and coordinate emergency response together by incorporating the operational area concepts and 
master mutual aid agreements; and 
 

WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District claims for State reimbursement of personnel 
response costs are contingent upon adopting and using SEMS; and 
 

WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District wishes to coordinate emergency and disaster 
planning and response with other agencies and to maximize the ability to recover costs incurred during 
response; and 

 
WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District staff have received and continue to update 

SEMS and National Incident Management System (NIMS) training and participate in the SEMS 
emergency response approach, including operational area concepts and Incident Command System 
(ICS).  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board Of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District that the District hereby adopts the State of California SEMS, Master Mutual Aid 
Agreement and operational area concepts as the means by which the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District will plan and respond jointly with other emergency response agencies; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all Sweetwater Springs Water District emergency plans and 
emergency response training shall reflect the use of SEMS, operational area concepts, and master 
mutual aid agreements and the compliance standards thereof; and 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 6 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sweetwater Springs Water District enter into and 
participate in assistance and operational area agreements to facilitate joint preparedness and 
response; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager take the steps necessary to effectuate 
these and future emergency-response-related agreements.  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly adopted 
and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma 
County, California, at a meeting held on November 5, 2009, by the following vote. 
 
  
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 7 
 

WARN – WATER AGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK  
(Mutual Aid & Assistance)  
 
SSWD Member Information –  Website: www.calwarn.org 
 
     User Name:  efortner@sweetwatersprings.com 
     Password: Sweetwater@1 
 
Provides use of/loans of immediate need resources such as Construction Equipment, Vehicles, Tools, Pumps and Generators, Fuel, Personnel, both 
Skilled, such as Treatment Operators, and General Laborers.  Likewise, as a member, the District would also make itself available to lend its goods and 
services.  

 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 8 
 

SECTION NO. 2  
 

District Chain of Command/Staffing 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
        
 
                
                
                            
      **************************** 
 
 
        
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
          

 GENERAL MANAGER 
         

 

ADMINISTRATIVE  
MANAGER 
1 POSITION 

FIELD MANAGER 
1 POSITION 

ACCOUNT CLERK 
 POSITIONS 

METER READER 
CONTRACT SERVICES SENIOR CREW 

SUPERVISOR 
         2 POSITION 

MAINTENANCE 
WORKERS/WATER TREATMENT 

OPERATORS 
4 POSITIONS 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 9 
 

SECTION NO. 3 
 

Phone Lists 
 

SSWD STAFF AND RESPONSIBILITIES DURING AN EMERGENCY 
 OFFICIAL WATER SYSTEM QUALITY CONTACTS 
 EMERGENCY SERVICES PROVIDERS 
 AUTOMATED TELEPHONE NOTIFICATION 
 WATER SYSTEM TECHNICAL SUPPORT CONTACTS 
 UTILITY AND SUPPLY PROVIDERS 
 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE PROVIDERS 
 LOCK COMBINATIONS 
 MEDIA CONTACTS 
 PURCHASED WATER SUPPLIERS 
 OTHER WATER AGENCIES 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND PROFESSIONAL STAFF 
 OFFICIAL POSTING LOCATIONS 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 10 
 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 11 
 

WATER SYSTEM CHAIN OF COMMAND 
(INTERNAL NOTIFICATION) 

 
NAME AND TITLE RESPONSIBILITIES DURING AN EMERGENCY CONTACT NUMBERS 

ED FORTNER 
DISTRICT GENERAL 
MANAGER 

RDE*: OVERALL MANAGEMENT AND DECISION MAKING FOR THE 
WATER DISTRICT.  INFORMATION SPOKESPERSON TO THE PUBLIC 
AND NEWS MEDIA.  

(707) 869-4000   OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 
(707) 661-3174   CELL 
 

   
JACK BUSHGEN 
FIELD MANAGER 
 

RDE: WATER QUALITY MANAGER IN CHARGE OF OVERALL WATER 
SYSTEM OPERATIONS.  RELAYS CRITICAL INFORMATION TO THE 
DISTRICT G.M. & PROVIDES RECOMMENDATIONS.   

(707) 869-4000   OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 
(707) 696-4335   CELL 
(707) 869-1142    HOME 

   
   

SENIOR CREW 
SUPERVISOR/ 
WATER SYSTEM 
OPERATOR 
 
BRYON EDGMON 
KEITH MCDONALD 

RDE: IN CHARGE OF INSPECTING TREATMENT PLANT AND 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM.  ASSISTS FIELD MANAGER WITH DIRECTING 
THE FIELD WORK FORCE.  MONITORS TREATMENT PLANT FACILITIES.  
TAKES DIRECTION & REPORTS TO UPPER CHAIN OF COMMAND. 

(707) 869-4000   OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 
(707) 888-2358   Cell (BE) 
(707) 217-3207   CELL (KM) 

   
   
FIELD CREW/ 
MAINTENANCE 
WORKERS 
 
JAMIN REED 
KEVIN GONZALEZ 
BERNARD O’BRIEN 
RYAN WILSON 
 

RDE: CARRY OUT ORDERS FROM UPPER CHAIN OF COMMAND.  
TYPICALLY WOULDCONDUCT SITE INSPECTIONS OF FACILITIES, MAKE 
NECESSARY DISTRIBUTION REPAIRS, & ASSIST OR BACK UP WATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR. 

(707) 869-4000   OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 
(707) 953-4129   CELL 
 
(707) 239-1164    CELL (JR) 
(707) 396-3833    CELL (KG) 
(707) 546-4686    HOME (BO) 
(707) 657-9643    CELL (BO) 
(707) 477-9800    CELL (RW) 
(707) 865-5236    HOME (RW) 

   JULIE KENNY 
OFFICE 
ADMINISTRATOR 

RDE: RESPONSIBLE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS IN THE OFFICE.  
IN AN EMERGENCY, COULD PROVIDE A STANDARD PRE-SCRIPTED 
MESSAGE FOR CUSTOMERS WHO CALL WITH GENERAL QUESTIONS.   

(707) 869-4000    OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 
(707) 869-1365   HOME 
Emergency cell - 707-483-4052 

   

   
   
ACCOUNT CLERK 
 
NICOLE KING 

RDE:  MAKES/RECEIVES CU STOMER PHONE CALLS, AMINTAINS CALL 
LOG.  RESPONSIBLE FOR CUSTOMER RECEIVABLES AND DATABASE 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE.  TAKES DIRECTION FROM GENERAL 
MANAGER AND OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR AND PROVIDES OFFICE 
SUPPORT AS NEEDED.  COORDINATE WITH ALL OTHER AGENCIES 
PIO’S.  

(707) 869-4000    OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005     FAX 
(707) 481-6036    CELL (NK) 

   
* RDE = Role During Emergency 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 12 
 

WATER SYSTEM CONTACT LIST 
(EXTERNAL NOTIFICATION) 

 
ORGANIZATION OFFICIAL WATER SYSTEM QUALITY CONTACTS CONTACT NUMBERS 

CALIFORNIA 
DIVISION OF 
DRINKING WATER 
(DDW) DISTRICT 
ENGINEER 

MISHA ANDERSON, DISTRICT ENGINEER 
Misha.Anderson@Waterboards.ca.gov 

(707) 576-2728   OFFICE 
(707) 545-0746   FAX 
(707) 815-9264    CELL 

DIVISION OF 
DRINKING WATER 

SANTA ROSA DISTRICT OFFICE (707) 576-2145   OFFICE 
(707) 576-2722   FAX 

SONOMA COUNTY 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 

JANICE THOMAS, SONOMA COUNTY ENGINEER 
Janice.Thomas@Waterboards.ca.gov 

(707) 576-2006    OFFICE 
(707) 576-2722    FAX 
(707) 533-4510    HOME 
(707) 849-6526    24/7 CELL 

WQ LABORATORY BRELJE & RACE  
425 SOUTH E ST.  SANTA ROSA, CA 
DOHS LAB, BERKELEY, CA  
 

(707) 544-8807    24/7 
(707) 576-2145    24/7 

 
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 09, 2021 
 13 
 

ORGANIZATION EMERGENCY SERVICES PROVIDERS CONTACT NUMBERS 

SHERIFF’S DEPT.  SHERIFF’S DISPATCH 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION LINE 
GUERNEVILLE SUBSTATION 

CALL – 911 
(707) 565-2121   DIRECT 
(707) 565-2511 
(707) 869-0202 
(707) 875-2660    FAX 

FIRE DEPT. MONTE RIO FIRE DEPT. 
 
STEVE BAXMAN, CHIEF 
 
MRFD COMBINATION 

CALL – 911 
(707) 865-2067   DIRECT 
(707) 484-2320   CELL 
(707) 573-7429   PAGER 
153 

FIRE DEPT. SONOMA COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT (GUERNEVILLE) FIRE 
DEPT. 
MARK HEINE, CHIEF 

CALL – 911 
SCFD- (707) 892-2000 
CELL- (707) 696-7500 
(707) 869-0553    DIRECT 
(707) 869-9089 
(707) 869-2811    FAX 

HAZMAT HAZMAT CALL – 911 

COUNTY OES 
 
 
 
 
COUNTY 
SUPERVISOR 

OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
PUBLIC INFORMATION HOTLINE 
FLOOD FORECAST LINE 
TENNIS WICK 
CHIRS GODLEY 
LYNDA HOPKINS 

(707) 565-1152    UNTIL 5 PM 
(707) 565-3856 
(707) 526-4768 
(707) 799-7726  CELL 
(707) 548-1942 CELL 
(707) 483-0443  CELL 
 

ONE CALL NOW AN AUTOMATED TELEPHONE MESSAGE AND CALL LIST CAN 
BE GENERATED BY OFFICE STAFF 

 

AMERICAN RED 
CROSS 

SO. COUNTY CHAPTER 5297 AERO DRIVE,  
SANTA ROSA 

(707) 577-7600   OFFICE 
(707) 577-7621   FAX 

CHP CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL 
 
ACCIDENT LINE 

CALL 911 
(707) 576-2175   DIRECT 
(707) 551-4100 

CAL TRANS CAL TRANS 
NICK SPERIDON 
ROAD CONDITIONS 

(707) 527-0256   DIRECT 

COUNTY ROAD 
DEPT. 

JOE GONZALES (707) 869-2024 
(707) 799-1424    CELL 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 14  

ORGANIZATION WATER SYSTEM TECHNICAL SUPPORT CONTACTS CONTACT NUMBERS 

HACH COMPANY HACH EXCLUSIVE TECH SUPPORT 
STEVE LAFIRENZA, REGIONAL SERVICE MANAGER 

(866) 902-4224     24/7 
(800) 227-4224 X 2123 
(515) 956-3810    FAX 

MIOX TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
FRANK KAYLOR 

(888) 646-9426 X1122 

CONTROL SYSTEMS 
WEST 

BRUCE BORDERS 
 
 
 

(707) 763-1108   BUS. HRS. 
(707) 479-1108   CELL 
(707) 765-9226   HOME 
 

 
ORGANIZATION UTILITY & SUPPLY PROVIDERS CONTACT NUMBERS 

AACTION RENTS FULTON STORE (707) 544-0501 

BARTLEY PUMP  (707) 584-9191 

PUMP MAN RON FOSTER (707) 584-9191    OFFICE 
(707) 975-7896    CELL 

FERRELLGAS  (707) 869-0634   OFFICE 

PACE SUPPLY  (707) 545-7101 

PG&E PG&E FIRST STREET, GUERNEVILLE, CA  (707) 869-2149   DIRECT 
(707) 743-5002   OUTAGE INFO. 

AT&T PRIORITY SERVICE 
REGULAR PHONE SERVICE 

(800) 332-1321 24/7 
(800) 924-9632  

USA’S UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT (800) 642-2444 

VON RENNER 
CONSTRUCTION 

JEFF LAYDEN (707) 869-0901    BUSINESS 
(707) 217-7348    CELL 

PIAZZA 
CONSTRUCTION 

JAMES PIAZZA (707) 484-1614 

 

ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE PROVIDERS CONTACT NUMBERS 

CRYSTAL COMMUNICATIONS 
RADIO & PAGING ANTENNA 
MICHELLE RODRIGUEZ 

(510) 895-9500 
(510) 895-5722    FAX 
(510) 325-2890    CELL 

DAY WIRELESS 
SYSTEMS 

DISTRICT RADIO REPAIR SERVICE (707) 746-5920 
 

SIGNIUS  
COMMUNICATIONS 

24-Hour Answering Service (707) 310-8397 
CODE: 3214 

   

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 15  

ORGANIZATION ACCESS LOCATIONS COMBINATIONS 

SSWD COMBINATION TO SWEETWATER GATE 1917 

SSWD COMBINATION TO DUBRAVA GATE 1024 

SSWD COMBINATION TO MT. JACKSON GATE – 1313 
BLDG - 9125 

 
ORGANIZATION MEDIA CONTACTS CONTACT NUMBERS 

KRON CH 4  (415) 441-4444 
(415) 581-8136 FAX 

KGO   CH 7  (415) 954-7926 
(415) 956-6402 FAX 

KGGV 95.1 FM THE BRIDGE  (707) 869-1131 
VOLUNTEERS@KGGVFM.ORG 

KPIX CH 5  (415) 362-5550 
(415) 765-8916 FAX 

KZST 100.1 FM  (707) 528-4434 
(707) 527-8216 FAX 
NEWS@KZST.COM 

KSRO AM 1350  (707) 545-1000 NEWSROOM 
(707) 542-1077 FAX 

KMGG 97.7 FM  (707) 578-0977 
(707) 571-1097 FAX 

KHTT  (707) 545-3313 

KXFX  (707) 543-0100 
(707) 571-1097 FAX 

PRESS DEMOCRAT BOB NORBERG (707) 546-2020 
(707) 521-5330 
(800) 675-5056 NEWSROOM FAX 

SONOMA WEST  (707) 823-7845 
(707) 869-3520 
(707) 823-7501 
NEWS@SONOMAWEST.COM 

 
 
 
  

mailto:news@sonomawest.com
mailto:news@sonomawest.com


Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 16  

NAME AND TITLE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & PROFESSIONAL STAFF CONTACT NUMBERS 

GAYLORD SCHAAP 

 (707) 869-9337   HOME 
(707) 592-8429   CELL 
(707) 865-1116   NORTHWOOD 
(707) 869-2345   OFFICE 
(707) 865-1290   FAX 

LARRY SPILLANE   
(415) 728-1611 CELL 

RICHARD HOLMER  (707) 865-2998   HOME 
(707) 327-8660   CELL 

SUKEY ROBB-WILDER  (707) 865-2470   HOME 
(707) 322-0811   CELL 

TIM LIPINSKI  (707) 869-1696   HOME 
(707) 239-6896   CELL 
(EMERGENCY ONLY) 

RACHEL HUNDLEY 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSON  (510) 808-2009  BUSINESS 
(347) 749-4163  HOME 
(510) 908-9091  CELL 

JOHN WANGER COASTLAND ENGINEERING (707) 571-8005  

ORGANIZATION OFFICIAL POSTING LOCATIONS CONTACT NUMBERS 

SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
DISTRICT OFFICE 

17081 HIGHWAY 116, STE. B, GUERNEVILLE, CA  (707) 869-4000 
(707) 869-4005 

GUERNEVILLE VISITORS 
CENTER 

FIRST STREET, GUERNEVILLE, CA (707) 869-9000    OFFICE 
(707) 869-4005    FAX 

GUERNEVILLE CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE 

FIRST STREET, GUERNEVILLE, CA  (707) 869-9000   OFFICE 
(707) 869-9009    FAX 

GUERNEVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY ARMSTRONG WOODS RD, GUERNEVILLE, CA (707) 869-9004    OFFICE 
(707) 869-1267    FAX 

RIO NIDO POST OFFICE 
BULLETIN BOARD 

RIO NIDO ROAD, GUERNEVILLE, CA   

NORTHWOOD BULLETIN BOARD HIGHWAY 116, MONTE RIO, CA   

  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 17  

ORGANIZATION PURCHASED WATER SUPPLIERS CONTACT NUMBERS 

NICK LERAS WATER TRUCKS 
 
 
 
 
CASSINI WATER 

RON AND JUDY MCCLINTOCK (707) 546-5797    BUSINESS 
(707) 887-7713    HOME 
(707) 953-0722    CELL 
(707) 484-9375    CELL 
(707) 571-5071    PAGER 
(707) 484-3979    CELL 

STEVE PEARSON TRUCKING  (707) 549-4426 

ORGANIZATION OTHER WATER AGENCIES – RUSSIAN RIVER AREA CONTACT NUMBERS 

BODEGA BAY PUBLIC UTILITY BODEGA BAY (707) 875-3332    BUSINESS 

CAL WATER GUERNEVILLE (707) 869-0050   BUSINESS 

FORESTVILLE WATER DISTRICT SERVES FORESTVILLE (707) 887-1551   BUSINESS 

RUSSIAN RIVER UTILITY 
JAMIE DUNTON 

SERVES CAMP MEEKER, FORESTVILLE, & 
DOWNTOWN OCCIDENTAL 

(707) 887-7735   BUSINESS 
 

SONOMA COUNTY WATER 
AGENCY 

 (707) 523-1070   24/7 
(707) 544-6123   FAX 

 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 18  

SECTION NO. 4 
 

General Emergency Plan 
 

PLAN 
 CONTACT LIST 
 
 
 

General Emergency Plan  
 
 
A. The normal notification of an emergency situation with the water quality will be from one of the 

following agencies. 
 

1. Regional Water Quality Board. 
2. California Division of Drinking Water (DDW). 
3. County Health Department. 

 
B. If employees of the Sweetwater Springs Water District discover a source of possible 

contamination that affects any waterway, we are to notify the California Division of Drinking 
Water (DDW), and the Water Quality Control Board (WQCB) at the following: 

 
707-576-2145   DDW General Office  WQCB 707-576-2220 
707-576-2722   DDW Fax 

 
After normal business hours contact DDW personnel.  
(See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN) 

 
C. Determine the nature and extent of the emergency. 
 

1. It is paramount to determine the potential of a health hazard after/during an emergency.  
If public health is jeopardized or the system is unable to meet applicable regulations, laws, 
or standards, DDW must be contacted. 

 
2. Within as short a time as possible contact all personnel to determine their personal 

conditions, whether they are affected by the emergency, and if they are available for work. 
 
3. The Field Manager and General Manager will coordinate all outside District employees 

and materials on loan, and the areas of assistance necessary. 
 

a. The Field Manager will collect and prioritize incoming information and inform 
General Manager. 

 
b. Appoint people to assess site damages, necessary repairs, and needs, such as 

power. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 19  

 
c. TAG SHEETS will be used to document ALL EVENTS, Make sure to record Times. 

 
(1).  Damage Assessments 
(2). Health Hazards 
(3). Repairs/Equipment Needed 
(4). Repairs Completed 

 
D. As quickly as possible start gathering information for a public information release.  If applicable, 
this information should address the location of potable water, emergency measures necessary, the 
type and duration of the emergency. 

 
(1) The senior account clerk will notify appropriate radio and television stations 

as well as local and area newspapers. 
 
(2) Clerical staff should be utilized on our phones as much as possible for 

continuity of information. 
 
(3) If it is possible to keep water in our tanks, have water truck running to keep 

the tanks with water and have CONSERVE WATER NOTICES put out 
throughout the town and at radio and TV stations.  The Office Manager or 
General Manager will contact potable water vendors concerning the 
stationing of water trucks for potable drinking water.  Locations will be at: 

 
(a) Safeway parking lot 
(b) Wastewater Plant at end of Neeley Rd. 
(c) Rio Nido Fire House 
(d) Monte Rio Fire House 
(e) E Street in Monte Rio across from Fern’s 

 

E.  The Field Manager and/or General Manager will gather information on damages and needs.   
 

(1) Prioritize damages. 
 

(a) Is it necessary to call in outside contractors to repair damages? 
    (b) Is it necessary to call in manpower from outside our District? 

(c) Is it necessary to implement a Boil Water Order or Unsafe Water 
Alert to insure the safety of our customers?  The District has a list of 
restaurants, food establishments and businesses that we contact in 
an emergency situation. 

 
(i) The General Manager/Field Manager, along with DDW will 

make that determination 
(ii) Contact DDW at 707-576-2145 concerning the 

implementation of the Boil Water Order. 
 
 (2) Prioritize needs.  Field Manager and/or General Manager). 

 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 20  

The District has a 225kw generator for the El Bonita Pumping Station.  It is started on a monthly basis 
and runs the wells for a 4-hour period each month.  This generator is located on Old River Rd. where 
it can be connected to run the pumping station out of flood waters.   
 
At the Monte Rio Treatment Plant resides a 200kw generator that is operated in the same manner. 

 
(a) What supplies are necessary to continue operations? 

 
(1) Generators for water production sites 
(2) Chemicals for water disinfection 
(3) Liquid Chlorine 
(4) Chemical feed equipment 
(5) Repair equipment 

 
D. Determine effect of exposure on our water system. (Field Manager, General Manager and 

Engineers) 
 

1. Is there a long-term effect to our system?  What is the short-term effect on our system?   
 
DDW personnel will be able to assist in this determination. 

 
(a) If necessary, contact the Water Quality Control Board and the California Division 
of Drinking Water. 

 
2. Possible alternative methods of continued service. 

   
Field Manager will determine the requirements for continued operation at present 
location. 
 
(a) Additional testing required to monitor situation. 
(b) Additional treatment required. 
(c) Requirements and parameters of continued operations as required by DDW and 

District operations. 
(d) Run stand by generators if power is lost, as well as calling in water trucks as 

needed. 
 
E. Procedures to complete prior to a declared emergency, or after an unannounced natural 

emergency. 
 

1. Notification of DDW at the following phone number:  
707-576-2145 Fax 707-576-2722. 

 
After normal business hours, DDW personnel should be contacted  
(See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN) 
 
(a) Type of emergency 
(b) Duration of emergency 
(c) Possible impact of emergency on local operations 
(d) Any possible requirements from DDW 
(e) Available manpower 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 21  

(f) Chain of Command 
 

(i) General Manager 
(ii) Field Manager 
(iii) Office Manager 

 
 
2. Notification of Local Fire Departments: 

 
Guerneville Fire Department 707-869-9089 
Monte Rio Fire Department 707-865-2067 

 
(a) Type of Emergency 
(b) Duration of Emergency 
(c) Possible impact of emergency on local operations in regards to fire protection 

 
F. Short term exposure. (Less than 12 hours) 
 

1. Estimate daily water use from production reports (Field Manager) 
 

(a) If it is necessary to shut down water production sites, determine if it will be 
necessary to notify the public and the Fire Departments to conserve water use, and for 
how long. 

 
2. Office Manager or Accounting Supervisor will contact radio, and television stations 

covering the area, with specific information concerning the emergency, and what actions, 
if any, should be taken by our customers. 

 
3. The Field Manager or Lead Person will determine if we can have water trucks fill storage 

tanks as needed, and have water conservation put into effect.  Office or Field Manager 
will notify potable water providers concerning the stationing of water trucks for potable 
drinking water. 

 
4. The stand-by generators will be started if power is off. 
 
5. The General Manager, Field Manager, or Office Manager will contact the Office of 

Emergency Services concerning the possible use of their equipment. 
 
G. Long term exposure.  (Longer than 12 hours) 
 

1. If the exposure is determined to be long term and the possible dewatering of the system 
is a potential these immediate actions should be taken. 

 
(a) Notification by General Manager, or Field Manager to DDW local office of existing 

problem and all pertinent information. 
 

(b) Notification of the public of the problem (via written notice, radio, television and/or 
local newspapers) by General Manager, Office Manager or Account Supervisor, 
requesting conservation of existing supply, and a boil water request for safety.  Notices 
will be posted in all areas of the District on telephone poles and at Post Offices, Fire 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 22  

Stations and at all tanker truck locations.   (See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY 
NOTIFICATION PLAN)  
 
(c) As system begins to be dewatered, booster pump stations will be shut down by 

direction of the Field Manager or other Crew Supervisors to prevent damage of a 
pumping station. 

 
2. Restoration of water to a dewatered system. 

 
(a) Chlorination into dewatered system areas will be set by DDW. 
 
(b) Hydrants in the areas where water is being reintroduced shall be opened, by 

operators to vent air and rid the mains of as much dirty water as possible.  Chlorine 
residuals should also  be taken from these hydrants and recorded. 

 
(c) Bacteriological samples shall be taken from all zones on a continuous basis till the 
samples come back safe.  Samples will be done in accordance with The Safe Drinking 
Water Act.  Turbidity tests shall be taken with the BT samples.  (Membrane Bacteriological 
samples with a 24 hour turn around time is preferred). 
 
(d) It will be necessary to supply information to the public as to time frames for service 

restoration and precautions to be taken in regards to water use/consumption. 
 

Follow procedures in WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN. 
 

Locations in Town for Public Notices 
 

The District has a list of restaurants, food establishments and businesses that are 
contacted in an emergency situation as well as contacting Face to Face and West 
County Community Services.  (See Call List) 

 
Monte Rio Post Office 
Guerneville Post Office 
Rio Nido Bulletin Board 
Guerneville Visitors Center 
Guerneville Library 
Monte Rio School 
Russian River Chamber of Commerce 
Safeway 

 
Schools, Hand-Out Notices 
 

Guerneville Elementary   707-869-2864 
Monte Rio Elementary   707-865-2266 
El Molino High School   707-887-2271 

 
Signs/Banners (Where appropriate) 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 23  

Available Field personnel will be utilized to hand out notices. Boil Water Notices and/or Unsafe 
Water Notices will be kept on hand.  Estimated time to customize notices for detail purposes, and 
ready to deliver – 15 minutes during normal business hours. 

 
 
Refer to Section 3 for contact names and phone numbers of official agencies, reporting agencies, 
private agencies, outside water Districts, Emergency Services, supply vendors, and contractors. 
 
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 24  

SECTION NO. 5  
 

Water Quality Notification Plan - Guerneville 
California Division of Drinking Water 

Drinking Water Field Operations Branch 
Sonoma District #18 

Sonoma and Marin Counties 
50 D Street/Suite 200 

Santa Rosa, CA  95404 
(707) 576-2145     Fax: (707) 576-2722 

 
WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN 

 
Name of System/Utility: Sweetwater Springs Water District; System 4910004 
Service Area:  Guerneville, Rio Nido 
 
 
Date: September 23, 2020 
 
Report prepared by: Jack Bushgen, Field Manager 
 
Water system name: Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 

21 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 25  

WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN: 
 

Please describe your water system’s plan for emergency notification to all water users: 
 

(See Attached Water Emergency Notification Plan) 
 

WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN UPDATED SEPTEMBER 2020 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Guerneville  PWSID #4910004  
Service Area:  Guerneville, Rio Nido 
 
A. The normal notification of an emergency situation with the water quality will be from one of the 
following agencies. 
 

1. State Division of Drinking Water (DDW) 
2. Regional Water Quality Control Board 
3. Sonoma County Environmental Health Department 

 
B. The following persons have been designated to implement the plan upon notification by DDW 
that an imminent danger to the health of the water users exists: 

Telephone 
Name   Title   Day   Evening 
 

1.  Answering Service   After-Hours     (707) 869-4000 
2.  Ed Fortner   General Manager   (707) 869-4000 (859) 661-3174 
3.  Jack Bushgen  Field Manager  (707) 869-4000 (707) 869-1142; (707) 696-4355 Cell 
4.  Keith McDonald  Crew Supervisor (707) 869-4000 (707) 217-3207 
 
C. The implementation of the plan will be carried out and communicated to the following DDW 
personnel: 

Telephone 
 Name   Title   Day   Evening 
          (See, Section 3) 
1.  Drinking Water Field  
     Operations Branch, Staff   (707) 576-2145 
     Santa Rosa    
2.  Misha Anderson  Staff   (707) 576-2765  
3.  Janice Thomas, P.E. DDW, Sonoma  

District Engineer (707) 576-2006  
 
If the above personnel cannot be reached, contact: 
 

Office of Emergency Services (24 hrs) at (916) 262-1621 
 
D. If employees of the Sweetwater Springs Water District discover a source of possible 
contamination which affects any waterway we are to notify the following: 
 
1.  California Division of Drinking Water  (707) 576-2145 (707) 576-2722 Fax 
2.  Regional Water Quality Control Board  (707) 576-2220 
3.  Sonoma County Environmental Health  (707) 565-6565 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 26  

E. The General Manager and Field Manager will contact all available District Employees.  Public agency 
employees are considered Disaster Service Workers (DSWs).  Section 1300, Chapter 8 of the Government 
Code identifies public employees as DSWs, and requires them to remain at or return to work during 
emergencies.  
F. The Field Manager will direct Field Staff to assess damages and to determine any necessary repairs or 
other needs.  As information is received from staff, the Field Manager will relay their findings to the General 
Manager. 
 
G. As soon as possible, the General Manager or other Management Staff will prepare a Public information 
announcement.  The information will address the nature and the estimated duration of the emergency, along 
with any special measures or precautions customers should take.  If applicable, the public will be notified 
where and when Potable Water will be located. 
 
H. The announcement will be delivered to the Office of Emergency Services , to customers via the 
District’s automated telephone message procedures, and to the Media. 
 
I. The Office Manager will work with Office Staff/Personnel to inform Public Entities, (i.e., Fire and 
Sheriff’s Departments, Schools, Library, Parks and Recreation, Chamber of Commerce, and Post Office).  
 
J. The Field Staff will set out large signs with information at main entrances to neighborhoods and parks.  
 
K. The amount of time it will take to notify the public will vary depending on the time of day and available 
personnel.  
   

During normal business hours, (Using an automated telephone call) the estimated notification time 
is expected to take approximately 3-4 hours.   
 

. . . After business hours, 4 ½ - 5 hours. 
 

(These times include message preparation, organizing the call list, and the total message delivery time 
it takes to dial all customers. 
 
L. All water system components (such as wells, storage tanks, pressure tanks, softening units, 
filtration, supply lines, etc.) will be checked for indications of unusual conditions or problems.  Any 
problems will be documented and corrected. 
 
M. The well, storage tanks, and distribution lines will be disinfected if necessary. 
 
N. If the contamination is bacteriological, the required repeat sampling procedure will be initiated 
per the approved Bacteriological Sampling Plan. 
 
O. Notify the Drinking Water Field Operations Branch of all sample results and any possible 
problems with the water system. 
 
P. Notify System Users when the Drinking Water Field Operations Branch notifies the water system 
personnel  that the water is safe to consume. 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 27  

 
 

SECTION NO. 6  
 

Water Quality Notification Plan – Monte Rio 
 
 

California Division of Drinking Water 
Drinking Water Field Operations Branch 

Sonoma District #18 
Sonoma and Marin Counties 

50 D Street/Suite 200 
Santa Rosa, CA  95404 

(707) 576-2145     Fax: (707) 576-2722 
 

WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN 
 
Name of System/Utility: Sweetwater Springs Water District; System 4910028 
Service Area:  Monte Rio 
 
 
Date: May 14, 2018 
 
Report prepared by:  Jack Bushgen, Field Manager 
 
Water system name: Sweetwater Springs Water District 

21 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 28  

SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Monte Rio   PWSID #4910028  
Service Area:  Monte Rio 
 
A. The normal notification of an emergency situation with the water quality will be from one of the 
following agencies. 
 

1. State California Division of Drinking Water (DDW) 
2. Regional Water Quality Control Board 
3. Sonoma County Environmental Health Department 

 
B. The following persons have been designated to implement the plan upon notification by DDW 
that an imminent danger to the health of the water users exists: 

Telephone 
Name   Title   Day   Evening 
 

1.  Answering Service   After-Hours     (707) 869-4000 
2.  Ed Fortner   General Manager   (707) 869-4000 (859) 661-3174 
3.  Jack Bushgen  Field Manager  (707) 869-4000 (707) 869-1142 
 
C. The implementation of the plan will be carried out and communicated to the following DDW 
personnel: 

Telephone 
 Name   Title   Day   Evening 
          (See, Section 3) 
1.  Drinking Water Field  
     Operations Branch, Staff   (707) 576-2145 (707) 533-4510 
     Santa Rosa    
2.  Sheri Miller   Staff   (707) 576-2145 (707) 974-8004 
3.  Janice Thomas, P.E. DDW, Sonoma  

District Engineer (707) 576-2145 (707) 849-6526 
 
If the above personnel cannot be reached, contact: 
 

Office of Emergency Services (24 hrs) at (916) 262-1621 
 
D. If employees of the Sweetwater Springs Water District discover a source of possible 
contamination which affects any waterway we are to notify the following: 
 
1.  California Division of Drinking Water  (707) 576-2145 (707) 576-2722 Fax 
2.  Regional Water Quality Control Board  (707) 576-2220 
3.  Sonoma County Environmental Health  (707) 565-6565 
 
E. The General Manager and Field Manager will contact all available District Employees.  Public agency 
employees are considered Disaster Service Workers (DSWs).  Section 1300, Chapter 8 of the Government 
Code identifies public employees as DSWs, and requires them to remain at or return to work during 
emergencies.  
F. The Field Manager will direct Field Staff to assess damages and to determine any necessary repairs or 
other needs.  As information is received from staff, the Field Manager will relay their findings to the General 
Manager. 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 29  

G. As soon as possible, the General Manager or other Management Staff will prepare a Public information 
announcement.  The information will address the nature and the estimated duration of the emergency, along 
with any special measures or precautions customers should take.  If applicable, the public will be notified 
where and when Potable Water will be located. 
 
H. The announcement will be delivered to the Office of Emergency Services, to customers via the District’s 
automated telephone message procedures, and to the Media. 
 
I. The Office Manager will work with Office Staff/Personnel to inform Public Entities, (i.e., Fire and 
Sheriff’s Departments, Schools, Library, Parks and Recreation, Chamber of Commerce, and Post Office).  
 
J. The Field Staff will set out large signs with information at main entrances to neighborhoods and parks.  
 
K. The amount of time it will take to notify the public will vary depending on the time of day and available 
personnel.  
   

During normal business hours, (Using an automated telephone call) the estimated notification time 
is expected to take approximately 3-4 hours.   

. . . After business hours, 4 ½ - 5 hours. 
(These times include message preparation, organizing the call list, and the total message delivery time 

it takes to dial all customers. 

 
L. All water system components (such as wells, storage tanks, pressure tanks, softening units, 
filtration, supply lines, etc.) will be checked for indications of unusual conditions or problems.  Any 
problems will be documented and corrected. 
 
M. The well, storage tanks, and distribution lines will be disinfected if necessary. 
 
N. If the contamination is bacteriological, the required repeat sampling procedure will be initiated 
per the approved Bacteriological Sampling Plan. 
 
O. Notify the Drinking Water Field Operations Branch of all sample results and any possible 
problems with the water system. 
 
P. Notify System Users when the Drinking Water Field Operations Branch notifies the water system 
personnel  that the water is safe to consume. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 30  

SECTION NO. 7 
 

Boil Water Orders 
 

PRECAUTIONARY DRINKING WATER WARNING NOTICE 
BOIL WATER ORDER 

 CANCELLATION OF BOIL WATER ORDER 
 UNSAFE WATER ALERT 
 CANCELLATION OF UNSAFE WATER ALERT 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 31  

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 32  

      
 
 
 
 

 
[Date] 

BOIL WATER 
ORDER 

(XX SYSTEM ONLY)  
Do not drink or prepare food with the water without boiling it first.  Failure to follow this 

advisory could result in stomach or intestinal illness. 

 
Due to a XXXX, the Sweetwater Springs Water District in conjunction with California Division of 
Drinking Water are advising residents of the (XX System) to use boiled tap water or bottled water for 
drinking and cooking purposes as a safety precaution.  
 
We will make an announcement when the Boil Water Order has been lifted.  We anticipate that will be 
XXXXX. 
 
We will try to have Potable water available at the following locations: 

o Guerneville Possible locations: Safeway, Neely Rd at Wastewater Plant, Rio Nido Firehouse. 
o Monte Rio Possible locations: Northwood parking lot, MR Firehouse, E Street.           Please 

bring a clean water container. (5 gallons maximum capacity) 
 
For more information, call the District Office at 707-869-4000. 
 

PLEASE SHARE THIS INFORMATION WITH THOSE MAY NOT HAVE RECEIVED THIS NOTICE 
DIRECTLY, E.G., APARTMENT HOUSES, NURSING HOMES, SCHOOLS, AND BUSINESSES.  YOU 
CAN DO THIS BY POSTING THIS NOTICE IN A PUBLIC PLACE OR BY DISTRIBUTING COPIES BY 

HAND OR MAIL. 
 
 
To purify your own water . . .  
 
1. Bring all water to a boil, let it boil for one (1) minute, and let it cool before using.  Boiled or bottled water should be used for drinking and 

food preparation until further notice.  This is the preferred method to assure that the water is safe to drink.  Boiling kills bacteria and 
other organisms in the water; OR 

 
2. Use fresh liquid household bleach (Clorox®, Purex®, etc.).  Add 8 drops (1/4 tsp.) of bleach per gallon of clear water or 16 drops (1/2 

tsp.) per gallon of cloudy water.  Mix thoroughly, and allow to stand for 30 minutes before using.  A chlorine-like taste and odor will 
result from this purification procedure, indicating that adequate disinfection has taken place; OR 

 
3. Use water purification tablets following manufacturer’s instructions. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 33  

      
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

[Date] 
 

CANCELLATION OF BOIL WATER 
ORDER 
(XX SYSTEM) 

 
 
On [DATE] you were notified of the need to boil/disinfect all tap water used for 
drinking and cooking purposes. 
 
The Sweetwater Springs Water System in conjunction with the California Division 
of Drinking Water, has determined through abatement of the potential health 
hazard and comprehensive testing of the water, your water is safe to drink.  It is 
no longer necessary to boil your tap water for consumption. 
 
For more information call the Sweetwater Springs Water District at (707) 869-
4000. 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 34  

Sweetwater Springs Water District         

        UNSAFE WATER ALERT 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (XX System) water is possibly contaminated. 

                                                                    

DO NOT DRINK YOUR WATER 
FAILURE TO FOLLOW THIS ADVISORY COULD RESULT IN ILLNESS. 

 
An unknown substance may be in the drinking water supplied by Sweetwater Springs Water District due 
to a recent (Occurrence)  The Sweetwater Springs Water District in conjunction with State Division of 
Drinking Water are advising residents of the (XX System) to NOT USE THE TAP WATER FOR 
DRINKING AND COOKING UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE. 
 
What should I do? 
 
• DO NOT DRINK YOUR TAP WATER---USE ONLY BOTTLED WATER.  BOTTLED WATER SHOULD BE USED FOR 
ALL DRINKING (INCLUDING BABY FORMULA AND JUICE), BRUSHING TEETH, WASHING DISHES, MAKING ICE AND FOOD 
PREPARATION UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE. 
• DO NOT TRY AND TREAT THE WATER YOURSELF.  BOILING, FREEZING, FILTERING, ADDING CHLORINE OTHER 
DISINFECTANTS, OR LETTING WATER STAND WILL NOT MAKE THE WATER SAFE. 
 
OPTIONS 
• Optional:  We will try to have water available at the following locations: 

o Guerneville (Possible locations: Safeway, Neely Rd at the Wastewater Plant, Rio Nido 
Firehouse) 

o Monte Rio (Possible locations:Northwood parking lot, MR Firehouse,                            E 
Street) 

Please bring a clean water container (5 gallons maximum capacity) 
 
We will inform you when tests show that the water is safe again.   
We expect to resolve the problem within ______________________________. 
 
For more information, call: 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, 707-869-4000 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B, Guerneville, CA 95446 
State Division of Drinking Water, Santa Rosa Branch, 707-576-2145 
 
                                                     
PLEASE SHARE THIS INFORMATION WITH ALL THE OTHER PEOPLE WHO DRINK THIS WATER, ESPECIALLY THOSE WHO 
MAY NOT HAVE RECEIVED THIS NOTICE DIRECTLY, E.G., APARTMENT HOUSES, NURSING HOMES, SCHOOLS, AND 
BUSINESSES.  YOU CAN DO THIS BY POSTING THIS NOTICE IN A PUBLIC PLACE OR BY DISTRIBUTING COPIES BY HAND 
OR MAIL. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 35  

SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT      DATE___________ 
 
 
 
 
CANCELLATION OF UNSAFE WATER ALERT 
 
 
On (Date) ______________ you were notified that your water was unsafe for consumption. 
 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District in conjunction with the State Division of Drinking Water, and/or 
__________________________ Local Environmental Health Jurisdiction, has determined that, through 
abatement of the health hazard and comprehensive testing of the water, your water is safe to drink.  It is Now 
Safe to Drink Your Water. 
 
For more information call: 
 
Water Utility Contact:___(707-869-4000_____________________________________ 
(Name, title, and phone number of utility representative) 
 
State Division of Drinking Water, Santa Rosa:_____(707) 576-2145___________________ 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 36  

SECTION NO. 8  
 

Office Power Outage Procedures and Distribution System Power Outage/ 
Emergency Generator Procedures 
 

OFFICE POWER OUTAGE PROCEDURES 
 

 
 
 
Power Outages at the District office (switching to Generator power)  
 
In the event a power outage occurs in the Guerneville area, the District office could be affected.  The phone 
system and the SCADA system rely on electrical power to operate, but both systems have limited battery 
backup.  Ideally, we can switch to generator power before the battery backup power runs out.  .   
The SCADA system battery backup will last for one hour.  This system will crash once battery backup runs 
out. 

Step 1:  Switch to generator power  
 
1. Go to the power source switchover panel. (This is located in the office hallway directly 

across from the vault door). Flip each of the six switches from the line position to the off 
position. (Off is the middle position.)  

 
2. Go out and get a 5000 watt or bigger generator from the tool shed and put in the back 

next to the dead 10000 watt generator.  Make sure all the oil and fuel levels are good.  
Now, run the portable generator.  Now plug in 240 volt plug by the old generator to the 
portable generator.  Make sure the generator is secured with a chain.  (The fuel for the 
generator is expected to last well over 24 hours.)  

 
3. Go back inside the building to the power source switchover panel. Flip each of the six 

power switches one by one, up to the generator power position. (The office should now 
have electrical power.)  

 
 
Step 2:  Make sure SCADA is up and running 
 

Check if the power button is lit on the SCADA server.  If it isn’t, reach down and boot up 
the server by pushing the power button.  (After a couple minutes the screen should light up.) 
Using a cell phone, call the SCADA alarm number 869-3686 to test it.  If you get an answer 
from the SCADA alarm automated voice, the alarm system is functioning. 
 

If you have any problems contact a supervisor. If there are no field supervisors available, contact Julie 
Kenny. If you are unable to make phone contact, make contact in person.  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 37  

 
Julie Kenny: 869-1365 (home) 
   483-4052 (cell) 
   Other cell # Matt - 535-6791 
 

 
Power Outages in the Distribution System(s) (Deploying and Switching to 
Generator power)  

 

1. Generators are set at various locations in both the Guerneville and Monte Rio 
Distribution systems.  Some of these generators are mobile and will be moved around as 
needed during a power outage event.   

 
2. The spreadsheet showing all locations for generators for deployment and use is below.  

In the event of a power outage, the mobile generators will be deployed, and all 
generators will be fueled.  Fuel delivery has been confirmed, and contact information is 
included in the spreadsheet. 

 
 

GENERATOR LOCATION SIZE FUEL SIZE (Gallons) FUEL TYPE SUMMER DAYS OF FUEL WINTER DAYS OF FUEL STORAGE W/O GENERATOR AGE MOBILE
EL BONITA 250 KW 335 diesel 2.25 3.75 1.0 Days (Summer)/ 1.75 Days (Winter) YES
MONTE RIO FILTER PLANT 125KW 240 diesel 6.5 11 1.0 Days (Summer)/ 1.75 Days (Winter) Yes
CANYON THREE BOOSTER 45 KW 200 propane 5.5 gal propane /hour YES
PARK AVE BOOSTER/TANK 55 KW 100 d/120 p diesel 0.86 gal diesel /hour YES
HIGHLAND TREATMENT PLANT 10 KW 100 diesel 1 gal diesel /hour NO
OFFICE GENERATOR 10 KW 96 propane 1.75 gal propane/hour NOTE GENERATOR IS OFF-LINE UNTIL IT'S REPLACED BY FERRELL GAS NO

LOCATIONS W/O GENERATORS PLUGS
upper summit ave booster note when lower sumit booster running,we have about 35 psi at upper site
hidden vally booster NOTE when power goes off cust still have water but low psi 15/20
santa rosa booster NOTE just system psi keeps them in water /pump hardly ever turns on
crespo booster NOTE we have a by-pass valve to feed the system

LOCATIONS WITH GEN PLUGS
EAGLESNEST BOOSTER/TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
CANYON FOUR BOOSTER/TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
MONTA ROSA BOOSTER/TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
NORTHWOOD BOOSTER/TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
HARRISON TANK AND BOOSTER 45/55KW
LOWER SUMMIT BOOSTER/TANK 45/55 KW 96 propane 3.18 gal propane/hour
WRIGHT DR BOOSTER /TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
SHOENMAN BOOSTER / TANK 5.0/7.5 KW
UPPER SCHOOLHOUSE BOOSTER/TANK 5.0/7.5 KW

NOTE  THE 45 AND 55 KW GENERATORS ARE ON PORTABLE TRAILERS
AND CAN BE USED AT HARRISON BOOSTER,PARK AVE BOOSTER,LOWER SUMMIT BOOSTER
AND CANYON THREE BOOSTER

ALSO WE HAVE TWO HONDA EM 6500 SX GENERATORS,5000 CRAFTMAN AND A 7500 FIRMAN (DUAL FUEL)  WILL PLUG INTO 
WRIGHT DR BOOSTER ,SHOENMAN BOOSTER ,EAGLES NEST BOOSTER,CANYON FOUR BOOSTER , MIDDLE SCHOOL HOUSE BOOSTER
 AND NORTHWOOD BOOSTER
FUEL VENDOR WILL QUARANTEE DELIVERY AND HAS GENERATOR BACKUP AT FILLING FACILITY



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 38  

SECTION NO. 9  
 

El Bonita Power Outage Procedures 
 

EMERGENCY GENERATOR DURING POWER OUTAGE 
PROCEDURE 
GENERATOR PICTURES ??? 

 GENERATOR LOG AND CHECKLIST 
 
9/11/09 
 

EMERGENCY GENERATOR DURING POWER OUTAGE 
GUERNEVILLE SYSTEM 

 
(WINTER TIME STATISTICS) 

• The generator is only capable of operating one well pump at a time. (Well pump capacity 
is 550-600 gpm.) 

• The generator diesel fuel tank capacity is 335 gallons. 
• When in operation the generator consumes approximately 6 gallons per hour. 
• The average winter day requires approximately 15 hours of operation with one well pump 

to keep the Highland storage tanks full. (This amounts to 90 gallons of fuel per day.) 
• Without refueling the generator, the storage system could be maintained at full capacity 

for approximately 3 ¾ days. 
(Without the generator assistance, the storage would last for 1 ½ – 2 days.) 

 
(SUMMER TIME STATISTICS) 

  The average summer day requires almost 24 hours of operation with one well pump to keep 
the storage tanks full. (This amounts to 144 gallons of fuel per day.) 

• Without refueling the generator, the storage system could be maintained at full capacity 
for 2 ¼ days.  

 
(Without the generator assistance, the storage would last for approximately 1 day.) 
 
Note: With serious conservation efforts on the part of our customers the water demand 
could be reduced dramatically. 
Conversely, a large water system leak could increase demand.   



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 39  

El Bonita Power Outage   
 

Procedure For Switching From PG &E to Generator Power  
 

DO NOT RUN THE GENERATOR WITHOUT SUPERVISOR’S OK. 
 

1. Always contact a supervisor before switching power source. 
(Most PG&E power outages do not require generator assistance.) 
 

2. Go to Highland Chemical Building and Turn OFF Alarm at the Chatter Box.  (You can avoid this 
first step of going to the Highland Chemical Building If you know the remote program phone 
code to disarm the Chatter Box.)  

AT GENERATOR  
Note: Each panel door is marked with a number. Pictures related to the procedures for turning the generator 
on and off, can be viewed on the last page of this section. They can also be viewed on the same clip board 
where the GENERATOR LOG & CHECK LIST is attached to.  
  
3. Turn ON the switch for the Batteries.  (Located inside Panel Door #3.)  (See Picture 1.) 
 
4. Check the Main Circuit Breaker on the generator.  It must be OFF.  (Located inside Panel Door #7.)  

(See Picture 2.) 
 
5. Check the generator OIL, FUEL, AND WATER LEVELS, ALL BELTS, WATER HOSES, A GOOD 

OVER-ALL CHECK. 
 
6. Fill out the GENERATOR LOG & CHECK-OFF LIST. 
 
7. Check GROUND CONNECTION.  (Located next to the power pole.) 
 
8. At the MAIN CONTROL PANEL, Set switch to MANUAL.  (Located inside Panel Door #1.)  (See 

Picture 3.) 
 
9. Push the Pre-heat button in for ten (10) seconds.  (Located inside Panel Door #1.)  (See Picture 4.) 
 
10. Push up on the Start/Toggle Switch.  (Located inside Panel Door #1.) (See Picture 5.)  Do not hold 

the Start Switch longer than ten (10) seconds at a time.  IF THE GENERATOR DOES NOT START, 
CALL A SUPERVISOR.   

 
11.  Let the generator run until the water temperature rises to 1400 Fahrenheit.  (Located inside Panel 

Door #1.)  (See Picture 6.) 
 
 
12.  Check the voltage on the MAIN CONTROL PANEL.  (Should read 480 Volts on each leg.  (Located 

inside Panel Door #1.) (See Picture 7.)  If not, call a Supervisor. 
 
13.  Check the Hertz Main Control Panel.  (Should read 60HZ.)  (Located inside Panel Door #1.) (See 

Picture 8.)   If not, call a Supervisor. 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 40  

14.  Move the Main Circuit Breaker Generator Switch to ON position.  (Located behind Panel Door #7.)  
(See Picture 2.) 

 
15.  LOCK all generator panel doors and go to El Bonita Up Stairs. 

 
16.  Turn OFF all wells by adjusting the Hand/Off/Auto (HOA) Switch to the OFF Position on the Hour 

Meter Panel. 
 
17.   Adjust the REMOTE Switch from PG&E to GENERATOR.  (Located upstairs at El Bonita just inside 

the door.  The panel is labeled #2.) 
 
18.  Switch the Lead Well to AUTO.  (Leave other wells OFF because only one (1) well at a time 

can be run from generator power.)  If the tanks are calling for water, the lead well should run.  
(You can refer to Pump Log Sheets to identify the Lead Well.) 

 
19.   Go to Highland Treatment Plant.  
 
20.  Monitor the CL17 Chlorine Analyzer and wait until the residual is in normal operating range.  

Check the EAGLE Unit in the Miox Building to be sure the Cl2 Residual and the PO1 are also in 
range. 

 
21. Re-arm Chatter Box by flipping the switch from the Disable position to the Alarm Ready position.  

(If Chatter Box calls out an alarm, contact Supervisor for direction.)  
                 

Procedure For Switching From Generator Power back to PG&E Power And for 
Shutting Off Generator  
 

1. Turn Off the Lead Well upstairs at El Bonita. 
 
2. Adjust the REMOTE Switch from Generator to PG&E Power.   (Located upstairs at El Bonita 

just inside the door.  The panel is labeled #2.) 
 

3. Reset the wells to the original settings (Lead and Lag).  (You can refer to the Pump Log 
Sheets to identify the Lead and Lag Wells.) 

 
4. Go to the Generator. 

 
5. Move the Main Circuit Breaker Generator Switch to OFF position.  (Located behind Panel Door 

#7.)  (See Picture 2.) 
 

6. Allow the generator to run, no load, for at least five (5) minutes to cool down. 
 

7. At the main control panel, adjust the Manual/OFF/Auto Switch to the OFF position.  (Located 
behind Panel Door #1.)  (See Picture 3.) 

 
8. Turn off the batteries.  (Located behind Panel Door #3.)  (See Picture 1.) 

 
9. Complete the Generator Log and Check-off List.  

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 41  

10.  LOCK all generator panel doors. 
 

11. Go to Highland Treatment Plant. 
 

12. Monitor the Cl17 Chlorine Analyzer and wait until the residual is in normal operating range.   
Check the EAGLE Unit in the Miox Building to be sure the Cl2 Residual and the PO1 are also in 
range. 

 
13. Re-arm Chatter Box by flipping the switch from the Disable position to the Alarm Ready position.  

(If Chatter Box calls out an alarm, contact Supervisor for direction.)  
 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 42  

SECTION NO. 10 
 

Monte Rio Power Outage Procedures 
 

EMERGENCY GENERATOR DURING POWER OUTAGE 
 GENERAL PROCEDURES 
 
9/11/09 
    EMERGENCY GENERATOR DURING POWER OUTAGE 
 
                              MONTE RIO SYSTEM 
 
                       (WINTER TIME STATISTICS) 
 

• The generator is only capable of operating one well pump at a time.                                   
(Well pump capacity is 340- 425 gpm depending on well selected.) 

• The generator diesel fuel tank capacity is 240 gallons. 
• When in operation the generator consumes less than 3 gallons per hour. 
• The average winter day requires approximately 7 hours of operation with one well pump 

to keep the storage tanks full. (21 gallons of fuel per day.) 
• Without refueling the generator, the storage system could be maintained at full capacity 

for approximately 11 days 
 
(Without the generator assistance, the storage would last for 1 ½ – 2 days.) 

 
                        (SUMMER TIME STATISTICS) 
   

• The average summer day requires approximately 12 hours of operation with one well 
pump to keep the storage tanks full. (36 gallons of fuel per day.) 

• Without refueling the generator, the storage system could be maintained at full capacity 
for 6 ½ days.  

 
(Without the generator assistance, the storage would last for approximately 1 day).   
 
 
Note: With serious conservation efforts by the part of our customers, the water demand could be 
reduced dramatically. 
Conversely, a large water system leak could increase the demand. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 43  

Monte Rio Filter Plant Power Outage  
 

Procedure For Switching From PG&E to Generator Power  
 

DO NOT RUN THE GENERATOR WITHOUT SUPERVISOR’S OK. 
 

Always contact a supervisor before switching power source.  
(Most PG&E power outages do not require generator assistance.) 
 
Go to Monte Rio Treatment Plant to get the generator in operation.   

 
Turn off breaker for the well on line.  (Located upstairs on the front of the well control panel box.  Make sure you 

know which well is on line.) 
 
Disable the Chatter Box by flipping the switch from Alarm Ready position to the Disable position. 
 
Go to the generator and open all the Panel Doors. 
 
Get the generator checklist out from inside Panel Door #1.  
 
Inspect belts, hoses, etc. 
 
Check coolant level.  (Spare gallon of distilled water is located inside Panel Door #4.) 
 
Check oil level.  (Spare quart of 30wt. oil is located inside Panel Door #4.) 
 
 Check diesel fuel level   (inside Panel Door #5.) 
 
 Adjust the PG&E/OFF/GENERATOR power knife switch to the OFF position.  (Located on the outside of the 

building near PG&E electric meter.) 
 
 On the generator, make sure the generator breaker switch is in the Off position. (The switch is located inside 

Panel Door #5). 
 
 On the generator, adjust the Off/Manual switch to Manual.  (Located inside Panel Door #1)  
 
 Put your ear protection on now. 
 
 Push the Pre-heat button in for ten (10) seconds.  (Located inside Panel Door #1.) 
 Push up on the START toggle switch to start the generator.  If generator fails to start after three (3) seconds, 

contact a Supervisor.   
 
Let the generator run until the water temperature rises to approximately 1400 Fahrenheit before proceeding.  

(Located inside Panel Door #1.) 
 
 Check the voltage on all three (3) legs by using the 1-2-3-OFF selector switch.  (Should be about 490 Volts 

without a load.)  (Located inside Panel Door #1.) 
 
 Check the Hertz Meter.  (Normal range should be 60-63 Hertz.)   (Located inside Panel Door #1.) 
 
 Adjust the power knife switch to the Generator position (Down).  (Located on the outside of the building near 

the PG&E electric meter.) 
 
 Adjust the generator breaker switch to the On position (Up).  (Located inside Panel Door #5.) 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 44  

 
 Disarm (Turn off) the chlorine alarms, both the High and the Low switches.  (Located upstairs next to the Chlorine 

Analyzer and the sink.) 
 
 Wait for ten (10) minutes. 
 
 Turn on the breaker switch for the well that is on line.  (Located upstairs on the front of the well control panel 

box.) 
 

If the Monte Rio tanks are calling for water, the well should begin to run. 
 
If the Monte Rio tanks are not calling for water, adjust the Manual override switch to the On position 

(Up).  This will force the well to run even though the tanks are not calling for water.  (The override 
switch is upstairs above the Production/Backwash panel.) 
WARNING!  THE OVERRIDE SWITCH MUST BE TURNED OFF BEFORE LEAVING THE 
PLANT. 
 

 The well should now be running.  Monitor the CL17 Chlorine Analyzer and wait until the residual is in normal 
operating range.  Check the EAGLE Unit in the Miox Building to be sure the Cl2 Residual and the PO1 are 
also in range. 

 
 Return to the generator and re-check for any fluid leaks.  (If all looks good, shut all the panel doors.) 
 
 Re-arm (Turn On) the chlorine alarms, both High and Low switches.  (Located upstairs next to the Cl17 Chlorine 

Analyzer and the sink.) 
 
 REMINDER:  IF YOU USED THE MANUAL OVERRIDE SWITCH TO FORCE THE WELL TO RUN, BE SURE 

TO TURN IT OFF NOW. 
 
 Re-arm Chatter Box by flipping the switch from the Disable position to the Alarm Ready position.  (If Chatter 

Box calls out an alarm, contact Supervisor for direction.) 
 
 
 
 
 

Procedure For Switching From Generator Power back to PG&E Power And for Shutting 
Off Generator  
 
1. Disarm Chatter Box. 
 
2. Turn Off well at Well Panel. 
 
3. Go Downstairs.  Adjust the power knife switch to the PG&E position (UP). 
 
4. Go Upstairs.  Turn On well at Well Panel.  System should come on unless Monte Rio Tanks are not calling 

for water. 
 
5. Monitor the Cl17 Chlorine Analyzer and wait until the residual is in normal operating range.   Check the 

EAGLE Unit in the Miox Building to be sure the Cl2 Residual and the PO1 are also in range. 
 
6. Shut off generator using the following steps:  
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 45  

A. On the generator, adjust the Off/Manual switch to Off.  (Located inside Panel Door #1.) 
 
B. On the generator, adjust the generator breaker switch to the Off position.  (Located inside Panel 

Door #5.) 
 

C. Complete the Generator Log and Check-off List.  
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 46  

SECTION NO. 11  
 

Fire Emergency Plan 

FIRE EMERGENCY PLAN/DISTRICT OFFICE  
 

A. CALL 911. 
 
B. All employees should evacuate the building immediately and close all doors upon leaving. 
 
C. Go to the tennis court on Old Cazadero Road. 

 
D. If time permits, personnel will secure fireproof safes and vaults before exiting building. 

 
E. If it can be done safely and quickly, personnel will secure (shut-off) gas and electric utilities. 

 
F. Within as short as time as possible Supervisors should account for all employees determining their 

personal conditions, and whether they are affected by the fire.  Employees should be prepared to 
report to Emergency personnel. 

 
1. Report any injuries to the General Manager 

 
2. For minor injuries utilize fully stocked first aid kits located in any District vehicle, and in the 

supply cabinet located in the Board Room. 
 
3. For more serious injuries, Call 911 or transport injured person to hospital. 

 
G. Gather information on damages and needs. 

 
1. Prioritize damages 

 
(a) The Field Manager will collect and prioritize incoming information and inform General 

Manager. 
 
(b) Appoint people to assess site damages, necessary repairs, and needs, such as power. 

 
(1) General Manager/Field Manager will determine the necessity and urgency of 

calling in outside contractors to repair damages. 
 
(2) Any possible needs known to be necessary to continue operations based on 

immediate knowledge. 
 
H. Possible alternative methods of continued service. 

 
1. General Manager will determine the requirements for continued operations at present location. 

 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 47  

FIRE EMERGENCY/ DISTRICT AREA (S)  
 

A. Notification of Fire Districts, Monte Rio/Guerneville, of substantial fire hazard:   
CALL 911. 

 
1. Field Manager or General Manager to designate District employees or resources as 

needed to assist. 
 

B. Field Manager to analyze and coordinate water needs with Fire Department to determine 
how to divert water to assist in fighting fire and possibly provide mutual aid and assistance. 

 
1. General Manager will determine the requirements for continued operations at the 

present location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 48  

FIRE EMERGENCY: WILDFIRE, POWER OUTAGE, EVACUATION 
 

A. Notification of Fire Districts, Monte Rio/Guerneville (Sonoma County Fire District), of 
substantial fire hazard:   
CALL 911. 

 
1. Field Manager or General Manager to designate District employees or resources as 

needed to assist. 
  

B. Field Manager to analyze and coordinate water needs with the Fire Department to determine 
how to divert water to assist in fighting the fire and possibly provide mutual aid and 
assistance.  Field Manager will coordinate communications and logistics with Fire District 
Chief using radios and cell phones. 

 
C. General Manager will coordinate and liaison with Sonoma County Emergency Operations 

Center (EOC) to assess real-time conditions relative to SSWD staff safety and fire district(s) 
support.  GM will update important information to SSWD staff, Fire District(s), SSWD Board, 
and the public throughout the incident.  Field Manager will coordinate communications with 
State Water Board, field staff and office staff (when necessary).  Group texts may be utilized 
due to reliability.  Email and phones will also be used. 

 
D. During PG&E power outages, SSWD staff will follow the backup generator deployment plan, 

including topping off water storage tanks and fuel tanks for generators (Section 8, 9, 10 of 
RFP). 

 
E. During Wildfire Mandatory Evacuation Order, GM will communicate with Fire District(s) and 

County EOC to determine the timing of SSWD staff evacuation.  After assuring staff’s family 
safety, SSWD key personnel will be asked to voluntarily continue work in the system under 
the constant presence of Fire personnel to assure safety and real-time information regarding 
status of wildfire and access to safe exit paths.  Office staff will evacuate.  Temporary housing 
for SSWD staff will be requested at the Monte Rio FD if needed. 

 
 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 49  

SECTION NO. 12 
 

Earthquake Emergency Plan 
 

Earthquake Emergency Plan 
 

Emergency Plan:  Notify Supervisor 
 
A. IMMEDIATELY seek cover either in reinforced doorways or under desks.  When earthquake stops, and 

as safety permits, evacuate the building to the pre-designated area (s) 
 

1. Parking Lot in front of office building. 
2. Tennis Courts on Old Cazadero Road 

 
B. If time and safety permit, personnel should secure fireproof safes and vaults before exiting building. 
 
C. If it can be done safely and quickly, personnel should secure (shut-off) gas and electric utilities. 
 
D. Within as short a time as possible, Supervisors should account for all his/her employees determining 

their personal conditions and whether they are available for work. 
 
E. Report any injuries to the General Manager 
 

1.   For minor injuries utilize fully stocked first aid kits located in any District vehicle, and in the 
supply cabinet located in the Board Room. 

 
2. For more serious injuries, CALL 911. 

 
E. Gather information on damages and needs. 
 

1. Prioritize damages 
 

(a) The Field Manager will collect and prioritize incoming information and inform General Manager. 
 

(b) Personnel to assess site damages, necessary repairs, and needs, such as power. 
 

(c) General Manager / Field Manager will determine any possible needs known to be 
necessary to continue operations based on immediate knowledge. 

 
(d) Is it necessary to implement a Boil Water Order to insure the safety of our customers? 

 
(1) General Manager / Field Manager, along with DOHS, will make that determination. 

 
(2) Contact the Department of Health Services at 707-576-2145 concerning the 

implementation of the Boil Water Order. 
 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 50  

2.  Prioritize Needs. 
 

(a) What is necessary to continue operations? 
(1) Generators for water production sites. 
(2) Chemicals for water disinfection. 
(3) Liquid Chlorine 
(4) Chemical feed equipment. 
(5) Repair equipment. 
 

F. Possible alternative methods of continued service. 
 

1. General Manager will determine the requirements for continued operations at present location. 
 

(a) Requirements and parameters of continued operations as required by Department of Health and 
District operations. 

 
G. Restoration of water to a dewatered system. 
 

Follow the same guidelines as set forth in the General Emergency Plan 
 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 51  

SECTION NO. 13  
 
 
 FLOOD EMERGENCY PLAN 
 
A. It is important to constantly monitor for a potential emergency situation as the Russian River 

approaches flood levels. 
 
1. The Field Manager or Designated person will monitor the flood level at the Guerneville 

Bridge hourly, and report their findings to the General Manager. 
 
B. If employees of the District discover a possible source of contamination that will affect any 

waterway they are to notify the California Division of Drinking Water (Check Phone List for 
updated numbers): 

 
1.  California Division of Drinking Water  (707) 576-2145 (707) 576-2722 Fax 
2.  Regional Water Quality Control Board  (707) 576-2220 
3.  Sonoma County Environmental Health  (707) 565-6565 

 
C. Procedures to complete PRIOR to, during, and after El Bonita wellfield flood inundation: 

 
(See, Section 14 - El Bonita Flood Response Plan and Recovery.) 

 
D. Determine the nature and extent of the emergency. 
 

1. The Field Manager will collect and prioritize incoming information. 
 

2. The General Manager / Field Manager will appoint field personnel to assess site 
damages, necessary repairs, and needs, such as power. 

 
3. FOLLOW  WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN. 

 
 (a) Contact the Office of Emergency Services and the local Fire Departments 
concerning any possible needs we may have.  

 
4. Office Staff should be utilized on phones as much as possible for continuity of information. 

 
5. Gather information on damages and needs. 

 
(a) Prioritize damages 

 
(b) Assess needs.  What supplies are necessary to continue operations? 
 

(1) Generators for water production sites. 
(6) Chemicals for water disinfection. 
(7) Liquid Chlorine 
(8) Chemical feed equipment. 
(9) Repair equipment. 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 52  

 
F. Determine effect of exposure on our Water System. 
 

1. Is there a long-term effect to our system?  What is the short-term effect to the system?  
Department of Public Health personnel will be able to assist in this determination. 

 
(a) The Field Manager will contact DDW if necessary. 
 

(1) Type of emergency 
(2) Duration of emergency 
(3) Impact of emergency on local operations 
(4) Possible DDW requirements 
(5) Available manpower 
(6) Chain of Command 

 
(i) General Manager 
(ii) Field Manager 
(iii) Office Manager 

 
G. Restoration of water to a dewatered system. 
 

Follow the same guidelines as set forth in the General Emergency Plan 
 
H. The Office Manager or Account Supervisor will implement our notification process.   

(See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN.) 
 
1. The General Manager will determine / prioritize the areas needing immediate attention, and 

utilize employees accordingly.  A list of employee’s will be prepared by the Field Manager for 
Emergency On-Call. 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 53  

SECTION NO. 14 
 
 
 EL BONITA FLOOD RESPONSE PLAN AND RECOVERY 
 
Section 2. District Flood Response Preparations: 
 
A.  Annual Preparations:  The District prepares for flooding at 
 El Bonita every year.  Flood response preparation drills are performed at least twice 
per year and possibly three.  One in early fall, one in late fall or early winter, and one 
prior to a predicted flood.  The District monitors Russian River water elevations.  River 
water elevations based on flood modeling is online and observed whenever appropriate - 
prior to and during rain events that are predicted to bring the River to flood stage.  The 
online flood elevation forecasts give District staff at least 24 hour notice prior to possible 
flooding of El Bonita.   
 
Flooding Drill Elements: 
 

• Perform a leak test at the well heads by filling the inside of the vaults with water 
and then cycling the pumps.  We’re looking for any decrease in the water level, 
and for any bubbles in the vault, as well as any leakage through the vault drain 
plugs.  We also pressure test the air vent pipes.      

 
• At Highland Treatment plant perform drill to operate the wells remotely and make 

adjustments to the chlorine dose, observe the chlorine analyzer, turbidity level, 
and adjust the inlet and outlet valves for the two main storage tanks for the 
purpose of isolation and rotating between the two tanks.  

 
B.  El Bonita Well Field Flooding Precautionary Procedures: 
 
The El Bonita Well Field Flooding Precautionary Procedures are District procedures that 
go into effect when it becomes apparent that the El Bonita Well Field is likely to become 
inundated from a flood event.  The Field Manager or a Crew Supervisor will notify 
District personnel and the local State Division of Drinking Water office that the 
precautionary procedures are taking place.  (The communication between District 
personnel and Division of Drinking Water personnel will continue until the flood 
event is over.)  
 
Public Communication: 
District management will be in contact with the County of Sonoma Emergency 
Operations Center and local public safety organizations regarding preparations for the 
flood event, and will contact local media explaining the situation and asking for reduced 
water use from customers to extend existing supplies as long as possible. 
 
Precautionary Procedures: 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 54  

Prior to the base of the well field taking on water, the well vault seal lids will be fastened 
to the top of each well head vault. 
 
Prior to the flood water reaching the top of the vault walls, continue pumping until the 
Highland storage tanks are filled to complete capacity. (Just below the Highland tanks’ 
overflow level of 27ft.) 
 
 
Shut off well pumps remotely, using the SCADA system at the office or from inside the 
control building at the Highland Treatment plant. 
 
Adjust the Highland storage tanks' inlet and outlet valves to operate in series so that 
only one storage tank at a time is supplying the distribution system.               

 
Use the following steps to adjust valves:   
 
 

• Close the inlet and the outlet valve for tank #2   
 (At this point tank #1 will be supplying the distribution system, while tank #2 will 
remain full, in an idle position.) 

 
  When tank #1 drops down to the 10ft level, follow this order of operations:  
 

o Open the outlet valve for tank #2.  
o Close the outlet valve for tank #1.   
o At this point tank # 2 will be supplying the distribution system.  
 

Note: Prior to running well pumps while flood is over the well heads follow the Specific 
Emergency Procedure Plans. 
 
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 55  

El Bonita Well Field Flooding 
Specific Emergency Procedure Plans 

 
Customer Notification: 
 
Office personnel will activate the automated call-out system to advise affected 
customers of the conditions. 
 
Before pumping water from the wells, the chlorine will need to be adjusted to meet CT 
Compliance.  Prior to making the adjustments, go inside the control building at the 
treatment plant and make a note of the current chlorine residual and the turbidity level. 

 
Now go to the SCADA screen to make the chlorine adjustments by following instructions 
for one of the two scenarios:   
 

  One well running. 
OR 
  Two wells running. 
 

 
 

See instructions on following pages. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 56  

Instructions for adjusting chlorine to meet CT Compliance: 
One Well Running 

Note: Prior to making the adjustments document the original settings in 
the pump diary. 
  
1. Scroll to   DOSAGE SP and change it from present setting to 0.80 
 
2. Scroll to COMPOUND: PR ENT 

FLOW: PRESS CLR and press the CLR on the key pad. This should 
change the mode to be in FLOW. 

 
3. Scroll to STROKE SP and verify the stroke is at 50% DEAD BAND SP 

 
4. Now go back and check each of the screens to make sure the changes reflect what 

you put in.    
 
5. At this point the wells will remain off until the Field Manager or Crew Supervisor 

makes a decision to proceed to step 6.  Determining factors for the decision will be 
a combination of the Highland water tank levels, the current system demand, and 
how long the River level is estimated to remain above the well heads. 

 
6. Turn the lead well on. 
 
7. Go to the MIOX room and verify the stroke on the chlorine booster pump dial is at 

50%. 
 
8. It will take about 15 minutes before the adjustments will actually level out to the 

target.  During this time there may be chlorine alarms from SCADA and the 
Chatterbox.  Disable the Chatterbox alarm and leave the SCADA alarm on. 

 
9. Slight adjustments on the chlorine may be required.  If so, the adjustments 

can be made using the DOSAGE SP. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 57  

Instructions for adjusting chlorine to meet CT Compliance:                  
Two Wells Running 

Note: Prior to making the adjustments document the original settings in 
the pump diary. 
 

1. Scroll to  DOSAGE SP and change it from present  
                   setting to 1.7 

2. Scroll to COMPOUND: PR ENT 
                  FLOW: PRESS CLR and press the CLR on the key  
                  pad. This should change the mode to be in FLOW.  
 

3. Scroll to STROKE SP and change to 100% 
                 DEADBAND SP 
 

4. Now go back and check each of the screens to make sure the changes reflect 
what you put in.  

 
5. At this point the wells will remain off until the Field Manager or Crew Supervisor 

makes a decision to proceed to step 6.  Determining factors for the decision will 
be a combination of the Highland tank levels, the current system demand, and 
how long the River level is estimated to remain above the well heads. 

 
6. Turn on the lead well, wait for at least 1 minute, then turn on the lag well. 

 
7. Go to the MIOX room and change the stroke on the chlorine booster pump dial 

to 100%. 
 

8. It will take about 15 minutes before the adjustments will actually level out to 
the target.  During this time there may be chlorine alarms from SCADA and the 
Chatterbox.  Disable the Chatterbox alarm and leave the SCADA alarm on. 

 
9. Slight adjustments on the chlorine may be required.  If so, the 

adjustments can be made using the DOSAGE SP.  
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 58  

CT Compliance forms: 
 
The Field Manager will monitor contact time and the effluent chlorine residual at the 
tank, and then enter the data into the CT compliance form for final calculations.  A copy 
will be submitted to Division of Drinking Water personnel by the Field Manager.   
 
 
Lifting the Precautionary Drinking Water Warning notice. 
 
When the floodwaters recede below the top of the wellhead vaults and new flood levels 
are not predicted, District operators will take bacteriological samples from treated water 
in three specific areas of the distribution system and an enumerated raw water 
sample at the well field for Lab testing. 
 
After a clean set of two consecutive days of samples from each sample site and upon the 
approval of Division of Drinking Water Personnel, the notice will be lifted. 
 
The distribution sample site locations will be Guerneville, Rio Nido and Guernewood 
Heights. 
 
The raw water sample site location will be from the test port on the main raw water 
line, at the well field, just outside the fence.  

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 59  

Section 3.  El Bonita Well Field Flooding 
Boil Water Order 

 
If the turbidity level increases during flood conditions a Boil Water 
Order will go into place. 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District understands that the Division of Drinking Water 
considers running wells with increased turbidity during a flood event a 'boil water' 
situation.  If so, the District will be prepared to implement its boil water noticing plan 
which is sandwich board notices throughout the system area, public notices through 
local media and the County Emergency Operations Center, and automated call-out to 
customers to advise of the changed conditions. 
 
The boil water notice will be rescinded after all testing requirements set forth by the 
Division of Drinking Water have been met.  

 
 
Section 4.  Recovery from Inundation at El Bonita Well Field: 
 
Recovery from El Bonita Well Field inundation will begin when flood levels start dropping 
from peak levels and hydrologic predictions estimate that a flood level rise is not coming 
in the forecast future.   
 
When flood levels are below the well field ground elevation, cleanup at the vaults at the 
El Bonita Well Field will begin.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 60  

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response PlanSeptember 23, 2020August 9, 2021 61  

   SECTION NO. 15  
Contagious Disease Disaster/ Coronavirus (COVID-19)       

Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response Plan 
Updated 08/09/2021 

 
 

I. Introduction 

Background 

Information 

Contagious Disease Disaster recovery in the broad sense will require similar responses as the 
COVID-19 Disaster of 2020.  The specific responses to the COVID-19 Crisis follows: 
Coronaviruses are a family of viruses that occur in humans and many species of animals, such 
as camels, cattle, cats, and bats. In fact, the common cold is caused by a coronavirus. A novel 
form of coronavirus, referred to as "severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2" (SARS- 
CoV-2) first appeared in Wuhan City, China in December 2019, and as of the end of February 
2020, has been detected in 60 locations internationally. This name was chosen because the virus 
is genetically related to the coronavirus responsible for the SARS outbreak of 2003. The World 
Health Organization (WHO) announced "COVID-19" as the name of the new disease caused by 
SARS-CoV-2. COVID-19 has spread rapidly in China, and has now spread to many countries 
world-wide, including the United States. COVID-19 has an estimated incubation period of up 
to 14 days, but most commonly about 5 days. The Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) has stated that during this incubation period, the person may show little to no 
symptoms, yet can transmit the virus. 

 
COVID-19 is believed to be spread from person to person by the infected person coughing 
or sneezing. This produces respiratory droplets from the infected person being put into the air 
where they can land in the nose or mouth of people in close proximity or be breathed in by people 
close by. This , coupled with its long incubation period, has led to its rapid spread. This primary 
mode of transmittance is why infected persons, and those caring for them, are encouraged to 
wear masks. The most common symptoms of COVID-19 are fever, tiredness, cough, runny 
nose, and trouble breathing (e.g., pneumonia symptoms). Some patients have reported aches 
and pains, nasal congestion, sore throat or diarrhea. Some people become infected but 
don't develop any symptoms and don't feel unwell. Most people (about 80%) recover from 
the disease without needing special treatment. About 1 out of every 6 people that contract 
COVID-19 become seriously ill, and develop difficulty breathing. Although most cases are 
not life-threatening, COVID-19 affects older individuals with chronic health conditions (e.g., high 
blood pressure, heart disease, diabetes) most severely, and can be fatal. Thus, people with 
fever , cough and difficulty breathing should seek medical attention. 

 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021            62   

 
This virus is currently spreading in the United States. It is important to note that the CDC has 
stated that the virus has caused a pandemic (i.e., an international epidemic). The COVID-19 
situation is a rapidly evolving situation and the risk assessment  is being updated regularly by the 
CDC (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- ncov/index.html). 
 
Although healthHealth officials are working on aapproved highly effective vaccines for COVID-19, no 
vaccine is currently available, and likely will not be available until later this year, or  and made them 
widely available and free in early 2021. Consequently, weWe still must all need to work together to 
limit the spread of COVID-19 in our community. The information presented in this document is 
taken from the websites listed in the references section of this plan, which also serve as sources 
for additional information for District employees. 
 
All Federal, State, and County orders and guidance will be followed.  The most current State Mandate 
requires wearing a cloth mask at all times that you can not maintain social distancingindoors and wear 
a mask outdoors if you are not vaccinted. 
 
Each employee will be compensated one time only, by the District up to 14 working days without having 
to use personal leave or vacation leave if prescribed by physician for COVID symptoms or positive test 
result, until the employee is cleared to return to work by a health official or the General Manager.  This 
14 day leave policy is rescinded as of September 1, 2021. 
 
Purpose and Intended Use for this Plan 
 
This COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response Plan (Plan) has been developed by the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) to best protect its employees against the risk (current 
and future) posed by COVID-19. The specific objectives of this plan are to: 1) identify precautionary 
measures that District employees can implement to best protect themselves and each other against 
contracting and spreading of COVID-19, and 2) to maintain critical operations of the District if 
COVID-19 becomes established in Sonoma County. Following the introduction, this plan has three 
major sections. 
 

• Section II: Precautionary Measures to Reduce the Spread of Illness in the Workplace 
identifies precautionary measures that both the District and its employees can implement 
to minimize the risk of workplace exposure to COVID-19. 

 
• Section Ill: Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations provides a tiered risk-level 

approach to modifying District operations while minimizing employee risk of workplace 
exposure to COVID-19 and spread to others within and outside the office, and to maintain 
critical District operations should an outbreak of COVID-19 occur in Sonoma County. 

 
• Section IV: References provides the websites from which much of the information herein 

was obtained. District employees and management can use these sites to get more 
information and CDC and WHO updates. 

 

http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-


Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021            63   

The General Manager reserves the right to modify any element of this Plan at any time based on 
his discretion, changed circumstances, and/or direction or requests made by health authorities or 
other agencies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

II. Precautionary Measures to Reduce the Spread of COVID-19 in the Workplace 

 
The following is a list of actions recommended by the CDC and other State and County health authorities 
that people should implement to reduce their risk of contracting COVID-19 and to reduce its 
spread should they, or others they interact with, contract the virus. 
 
Precautionary Actions for Immediate Implementation by District Employees 
 
The recommended precautionary actions listed below are similar to, or the same as, measures we 
are all familiar with to minimize our annual risk of contracting influenza (i.e., the flu). Other 
precautionary measures have been added that are specific to COVID-19 at this time, as 
recommended by the CDC and other health authorities. 
 

• Employees who have symptoms of acute respiratory illness (i.e., fever and cough, and 
possibly trouble breathing) need to notify their supervisor and stay home and not come 
back to work until they are free of fever (100.4°F) or greater (using an oral thermometer), 
signs of fever, or other respiratory illness symptoms for at least 24 hours, without the use 
of fever-reducing or other symptom-altering medicines. 

 
• If you have a family member that becomes ill with acute respiratory illness symptoms, 

notify your supervisor, who may request that you stay home for an appropriate period of 
time prior to returning to the workplace. Keep your supervisor apprised of your/family 
member's recovery. 

 
• If you come down with a cough, fever, shortness of breath or other acute respiratory 

illness symptoms while at work, separate yourself from your co-workers, notify your 
supervisor, and immediately go home. 

 
• All employees should practice the following respiratory etiquette and related practices to 

minimize their risk of contracting and spreading COVID-19. 

 
o Avoid close contact with people who are sick. Maintain 6 ft or greater distance 

between yourself and anyone else. 

o Cover your nose and mouth when you cough or sneeze with a tissue and then 
throw the tissue away or do so into your elbow or shoulder if no tissue is available. 

o Wash your hands frequently with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. 

o If soap and water is not available, use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021            64   

o Avoid touching your eyes, nose and mouth with unwashed hands. 
 

o Put away any community candy jars. 

o Routinely clean all frequently touched surfaces in your workspace, such as 
workstations, mouse, desktop phones, cell phones, countertops, and doorknobs. 
Use disinfecting wipes to wipe-down common-surface places, where appropriate. 

o Seek medical advise that may include COVID-19 testing if the employee exhibits 
these described symptoms.  If symptomatic personnel receive medical advice for 
testing and test positive, employee will remain off work until symptoms stop and 
medical clearance allows employee to return to work.  County of Sonoma Health 
Officer guidance will help determine the District procedure for potential isolation 
and return to work.   

Use cleaning products that contain >60% alcohol, 0.5% hydrogen peroxide, 0.1% sodium 
hypochlorite (bleach), or other active ingredients known to kill viruses. 

• Check the "CDC's Traveler's Health Notices" [https://wwwnc.cdc. gov/travel] for the latest 
guidance and recommendations before you travel to other countries. Avoid travel to level 
3 and 4 countries until the CDC has indicated that it is safe to do so. 

 
• Do not travel by airplane, bus, cruise ship or other means with large numbers of people if 

you are experiencing symptoms of acute respiratory illness. 

 
Precautionary Actions for Immediate Implementation by District Management 
 

• Stay aware of the latest information on the COVID-19 outbreak, available on the WHO 
and CDC websites. State alerts and orders, and County alerts and orders. 

 
• Provide tissues and no-touch disposal receptacles for use by all employees. 

 
• Provide alcohol-based hand sanitizers that contain at least 60% alcohol at various locations 

in the workplace, including in trucks and the office space. 

 
• Provide disposable wipes for employee use for wiping down frequently touched surfaces 

within the workplace. 

 
• Keep Union notified of any changes to policies or procedures 

 
• Keep District IDs available for Emergency/ Essential personnel needs



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021            65   

 
Ill. Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations 
 
This section identifies how District operations, including individual employee roles, may need to 
change if COVID-19 becomes established in Sonoma County. The co-equal objectives for this 
portion of the plan are to: 1) best protect employees against the spread of COVID-19, and 2) 
maintain critical District water supply operations for the community. The plan for maintaining District 
operations is tiered based on the COVID-19 risk level in Sonoma County, as discussed in greater 
detail below. 
 
Risk Level 1: Continued Increases in the Number of Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the 
United States and California, and no Confirmed Cases in Sonoma County and Surrounding 
Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 1 shall be declared by the General Manager when confirmed cases of 
COVID-19 were announced in the United States and in the state of California. 
 
Under Risk Level 1, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 is low and thus the District 
shall conduct normal business operations, with the addition of implementing the precautionary 
measures identified in Section II of this Plan. 
 
Risk Level 2: Continued Increases in the Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the United States, 
California, and few Confirmed Cases in Sonoma and/or Surrounding Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 2 shall be declared by the General Manager when confirmed cases of COVID-
19 are announced in Sonoma County and/or surrounding counties. 
 
Under Risk Level 2, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 remains relatively low, but the risk 
level is increasing due to increasing numbers of confirmed cases in the country, state, Sonoma County 
and surrounding counties. 
 
In addition to the actions being implemented under Risk level 1, including the precautionary measures 
identified in Section II of this Plan, actions to be implemented at Risk Level 2 include, but may not be 
limited to, the following. 
 

• Disinfect identified surfaces and bathrooms more frequently. 

o Implement employee efforts to sanitize identified administrative office surfaces. 

• Those collecting money from the public are to wear disposable latex medical gloves or hand 
sanitize after each transaction. 

o Remove and dispose of gloves and wash hands prior to eating or touching common-
surface places within the office. 

• Limit routine in-person meetings in favor of conference calls. 

• Ensure all supplies for treating water are fully stocked. 

• Temporary flexible workplace and leave policies, and other relevant aspects of this Plan, shall 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021            66   

be communicated to all District employees. 

 
• The General Manager will coordinate with CalWarn and local agencies including water 

agencies to discuss procedures and mutual aid. 

 
At Risk Level 2, District management will start to hold meetings on Risk Level 3 and 4 scenarios, and 
through these meeting discussions will determine whether the District is ready to implement the 
necessary modified operations for those higher risk levels. These scenario exercises are intended to 
identify short comings in the District's preparedness and to focus near-term efforts on remedying the 
"holes" in the response planning as quickly as possible. If not already in place, authorities, triggers, and 
procedures for activating and terminating key elements of this Plan will be put in place.



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021           67  

 
Risk Level 3: Continued Increases in the Number of Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the 
United States, California, and Numerous Cases in Sonoma County and Surrounding Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 3 will be declared by the General Manager if COVID-19 reaches or 
approaches epidemic levels in the United States and numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 
are announced for Sonoma County and surrounding counties. 
 
We are currently operating under Risk Level 3, due to numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 in 
Sonoma County and surrounding counties. 
 
At Risk Level 3, COVID-19 may be declared an epidemic or pandemic by the CDC and local health 
authorities in the United States and California and numerous cases have been confirmed in people 
living in Sonoma County and surrounding counties. As such, the risk of contracting COVID-19 for 
District employees is no longer low. At the direction of the General Manager, the District will now 
further modify operations to minimize all contact of employees with the general public and will 
focus on maintaining essential duties necessary to maintain water service to the public, with the 
minimal number of employees. 
 
Operational scenarios will now focus on how best to maintain essential services with reduced 
staff, should one or more District employees contract the virus. Additional operational 
modifications to be implemented at Risk Level 3 shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the 
following. 

• Shut down foot traffic to office, allowing payment online, over the phone, by mail, or 
through the mail slot. 

o Notify the public by website, media, answering service.  Close-down the 

administrative office to the general public. 

o Notify other local agencies and vendors of the District's office closure to the 

public. 

• Board meetings shall be postponed or conducted by teleconference (if possible) rather 
than by in-person meetings. 

• Implement practices developed, including less interaction with homeowners, methods 
of leaving door notices, etc. to increase physical distance among employees and 
between employees and the public, as further directed in Attachment A. 

o Separate departments and minimize in-person interactions between District 
administrative, operations, and distribution employees as much as possible. 

o Within departments, minimize face-to-face interactions of key personnel as well. 

o Coordinate by email, phone, and text messages whenever possible and 
effective. 



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 09, 
2021           68  

 
Risk Level 4: Initial Confirmed Case(s) of COVID-19 Among District Employees. 
 
Trigger Point: Risk Level 4 will be declared by the General Manager if one or more District 
employees, or an immediate family member of an employee, test positive for COVID-19. 
 
Because of the small size of the District, operating out of a single administrative office, one or 
more District employees (or their immediate family members) being confirmed to have contracted 
COVID-19 is a situation that poses a relatively high risk to other District employees of contracting the 
virus. 
 
The District will follow County of Sonoma Health Officer guidance for isolation, contact tracing, and 
return to work status of all affected employees. 
 
In addition to the actions and operational procedures already being implemented, additional 
operational modifications/actions to be implemented at Risk Level 4 may includethe following. 
 

• All employees will remain home until directed otherwise by the General Manager. 

o Each employee will be compensated one  t ime  on ly ,  by the District up to 14 
working days without having to use personal time off or vacation time until the 
employee is cleared to return to work by a health official or the General Manager. 

o Employees not exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19 will be on-call for work activities, 
at the direction of the General Manager, Field Manager, or their Administrative 
Manager. All on-call employees must respond and be at work as stated in the MOU 
if called upon to work. 

o Any employees reporting to work shall wear a face mask and gloves when 
interacting with other parties. 

• Employee(s) that have contracted COVID-19 (or employees who have family members 
that have confirmed COVID-19) will not be allowed to return to work until they can provide 
a doctor's note, clearing them of COVID-19. 

• If an employee has been confirmed to have COVID-19, the General Manager will inform 
other employees, using the phone tree, of their possible exposure to COVID-19, but will 
maintain confidentiality of the infected employee. All District employees will be instructed 
to stay home. 

• Employees should refer to the CDC guidance for "how to conduct  a risk assessment" of 
their potential exposure (CDC Website: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- 
ncov/summarv.html#risk-assessment). 

http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-


Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 09, 2021
 69 

• Board meetings shall continue to be postponed or conducted by teleconference (if 
possible) rather than by in-person meetings. 

• Implement any potential remaining actions identified to minimize in-person contact among 
employees and between employees and the public. 

• Implement all identified minimum essential functions necessary to maintain only essential 
District services, with essential personnel, as further defined in Attachment B. 

• CIP work is temporarily suspended. Other actions may be implemented at the direction of 
the General Manager or Assistant General Manager, the CDC, or local health authorities. 

 
VI. References 
Websites that contributed information to this plan are listed below. They also serve as reference 
sites for employees to obtain further information about COVID-19. 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi   ness- 
response .html?CDC   AA    reNa l=https%3A%2F%2Fwww .cdc.gov%2Fcoronavi 
rus%2F2019- ncov%2Fguidance-business-response .html 

https://www .osha .gov/SLTC/covid-19/ 
 
https://www .en n.com/2020/02/16/health/coronavi rus-how-to-protect -you rsel f-trnd/index .htmI 
 
https://q 13fox.com/2020/02/26/how-you-and-your-workp l ace-can-protect -yourse lves-from-the-  
novel -coronav irus/ 

https://www .livescience.com/how -long-coronavirus-last-surfaces .html https://www.who 

.int/news-room/q-a -deta il/g-a-coronavi ruses 

https://www.shrm.org/resourcesandtoo  ls/legal-and-compliance/employment- law/pages/address-  
workp lace-coron avirus-concerns. Aspx 
 
https://socoemergency.org/ 

https ://travel .state .govIcontent/travel/en/trave ladvisori es/trave l advisories .htmI.htmI 

https://hrexecutive .com/coronavirus-hrs-role/ 

 
 
Approved and implemented 
 
 
Ed Fortner 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
efortner@sweetwatersprings.com 
http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/ 
707-869-4000 
 

 
 

http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi
http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi
mailto:efortner@sweetwatersprings.com
http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/


Sweetwater Springs Emergency Response Plan                   September 23, 2020August 09, 
2021           70      

Attachment A 
Action Plan for Risk Level 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sweetwater Springs Emergency Response Plan                   September 23, 2020August 09, 
2021           70      

  
 



 
 
 

Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021           72 

 
 
 

 

Attachment A 
Action Plan for Risk Level 3 

 
 
 

Operations: 
 

Operations personnel will isolate themselves into the following groups.  There shall be no person- 
to-person interactions between these two groups. 

 
Group 1:  Treatment a n d  D i s t r i b u t i o n staff 

 
 
 
• The Distribution/  F i e l d Department will generally remain back in the Field with minimal use of 

District Offices. The Department will respond in person to service calls only for the most 
serious situations such as no water service and/or water line breaks. Customers who have 
water quality complaints or pressure problems will be responded to with telephone calls in a 
concerted effort to resolve the problems. Meter reading and basic water distribution maintenance 
activities will continue to the extent that employees can maintain safe distances from the 
general public. The Utility Department will continue to conduct CIP work with the 
understanding that employees need to maintain safe distances from the general public. 

 
Administration: 

 
Administrative personnel will continue to conduct business as normal, except that the 
Administration Building will be closed to the public.  All interaction with the public will be by 
telephone or email. 

 
Administrative personnel will isolate themselves from Operations personnel as much as 
possible and all possible contact will be conducted through telephone or email. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23, 2020August 
09, 2021           73 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Attachment B 
Action Plan for Risk Level 4 

 
 
 
  



Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Response Plan           September 23August 09, 2020           
2021             73 

Attachment B 
Action Plan for Risk Level 4 

 
 
 

Operations: 
 

Operations will be suspended for the duration of the quarantine period.  The   length   of   the quarantine period 
will be determined by the General Manager based on the circumstances at the time (including prevalence of 
COVID-19 in the community), and input from health  authorities. (estimated to be approximately 14-28 days).  
During this time: 

 
• Two Distribution Operators will conduct patrols throughout Service Area during normal business hours. 

 
• All Distribution Operators not exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19 will be on call. 

 
After the quarantine period, as declared by the General Manager, Operations staff cleared to return to work 
will resume duties commensurate to the declared Risk Level. 

 
Administration: 

 
Administration operations will be suspended for the duration of the quarantine period (estimated to be 
approximately 14-28 days).  During this time: 

 
• The Administrative Manager will only perform essential duties such as payroll, necessary AP vendor 

payments, billing and procurement through remote access from home or office. 

 
After the quarantine period, Administrative staff cleared to return to work will resume duties commensurate 
to the declared Risk Level. 

 
 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

         
COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing Policy 

 
1. Purpose and Applicability  

 
The purpose of this policy is to facilitate protection of the health and safety of County employees 
and the residents of the Sonoma County community.  Being the largest employer in Sonoma 
County with over 4,400 employees, and considering the number of household members and 
residents County employees come into contact with daily, a policy such as this can mitigate COVID-
19 transmission. This policy follows the County Health Officer’s strong recommendation that 
employers implement a policy of vaccine verification or weekly COVID-19 testing, which mirrors 
recent State and local Health Orders.  The overwhelming international public health consensus is 
that vaccination against COVID-19 is the most effective means of preventing infection with the 
COVID-19 virus, and subsequent transmission and outbreaks.  
 
This policy applies to all employees performing work for the County, County agencies, and special 
districts. Where the policy uses terms such as “employees”, “departments”, or “department 
heads”, these include, but are not limited to, part-time, extra-help, probationary and permanent 
County employees, as well as executives and employees of the Sonoma County Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space District, the Sonoma County Community Development Commission, 
the Sonoma County Fair and Exposition, Inc., the Sonoma County Employees’ Retirement Agency, 
and the Sonoma County Water Agency. 

 
2. Policy 
 

This policy establishes the requirement for all employees to provide proof of full COVID-19 
vaccination or submit to weekly COVID-19 testing as a condition of employment.   
 
This policy further provides that all departments and agencies must begin collecting proof of 
vaccination no later than August 23, 2021. 
 

3. Policy Guidelines and Procedures 
 
A. Proof of COVID-19 Vaccination  
 

Employees must complete COVID-19 Vaccination Verification Form and show proof of full 
COVID-19 vaccination to their manager or designee, as provided under this policy.  Proof of 
vaccination may be provided in one of the following formats: 

I. COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health and Human 
Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card) which includes 
name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose administered; 
or 

II.  A copy or photo of the Vaccination Card or an electronic vaccination record; or 

III. Documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider; or 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

IV. Record of participation in a County employee COVID vaccination clinic; or 

V. Digital state of California record from the https://myvaccinerecord.cdph.ca.gov/. 
 

B. COVID-19 Testing 

Employees who have not submitted proof of full COVID-19 vaccination by September 3, 2021 
will be subject to weekly COVID-19 testing beginning the week of September 6, 2021, and 
continuing until such time as the employee submits the required proof, as detailed in Section 
3.A above. 

I. Employees must complete a COVID-19 Testing Consent Authorization Form. 

II. Testing will be conducted during a regular work shift with pre-approval from the 
employee’s manager or supervisor and will be considered hours worked. Pre-approval 
from the employee’s manager or supervisor is required for testing conducted outside of 
the regular work schedule in order to be considered hours worked.  

III. County offered testing resources will be made available to employees as an option. 

IV. The employee’s manager or another department authorized designated manager will 
provide notice of the date, time, and location for County offered COVID-19 testing. 

V. Alternatively, the employee may submit proof of negative COVID-19 PCR or antigen test 
conducted during the weekly testing window.  

VI. If an employee tests positive for COVID-19, departments will follow the procedures 
outlined in Section I:  Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees Who Had a Close 
Contact COVID-19 Exposure, of the Department’s COVID-19 Protection Program (CPP) 
and the County’s Exposure Protocol. 

 
C. Tracking and Reporting 

 
The following information will be recorded and tracked and maintained in a manner consistent 
with the Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (“CMIA”), and Sonoma County’s 
Information Technology Use and Security Policy and Guidelines for Management and Access of 
Employee Records.   

 
i. Proof of vaccination 

• Full legal name 
• Date of birth 
• Date(s) of vaccination  
• COVID-19 Vaccine manufacturer 

. 
ii. COVID-19 Testing Dates 

• Date of test 
• Results of test 

 

https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CAO/Administrative-Policies/IT-Use-and-Security-Policy/
http://sharepoint-dept/sites/hrd/Shared%20Documents/ESS/Guidelines%20for%20Management%20and%20Access%20of%20Employee%20Records.pdf
http://sharepoint-dept/sites/hrd/Shared%20Documents/ESS/Guidelines%20for%20Management%20and%20Access%20of%20Employee%20Records.pdf


 

Page 3 of 5 
 

4. Responsibilities 
 

A. Department Heads (or designee): 

i. Ensure managers and supervisors are advised of the COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing 
Policy. 

ii. Ensure managers and supervisors are appropriately communicating with employees 
regarding the policy requirements. 

iii. Follow and ensure compliance with the policy guidance, protocols and all local, state 
and/or federal regulatory guidelines (including the Department’s COVID-19 Prevention 
Program) and Public Health Orders. 

iv. Ensure there are internal processes in place to maintain confidential records and that 
required information is entered into the Human Resources Information System (HRIS) in 
a timely manner. 

 
B. Managers: 

i. Managers review proof of COVID-19 vaccination submitted by employees and provide 
the required information to the department Payroll Clerk or other designee(s) 
responsible for maintaining employee records (paper and electronic); if a designee is 
assigned by managers, then managers must ensure their designee is following the 
process. The proof of COVID-19 vaccination is returned to the employee or deleted. 

ii. For employees subject to weekly COVID-19 testing, communicate available testing 
resources, including any County provided sites, and schedule testing times for direct 
reports during their regularly scheduled work shifts or authorize direct reports to test 
outside their regular work schedule.   

iii. Follow and ensure employees comply with the policy guidance, protocols and all local, 
state and/or federal regulatory guidelines (including the Department’s COVID-19 
Prevention Program) and Public Health Orders. 

C. Employees:  

i. Notify their supervisor if, at any time prior to or during the course of their shift, they 
experience COVID-19 symptoms, or receive a positive COVID-19 test result. 

ii. Notify their supervisor if they believe they may have been in close contact with a 
confirmed case of COVID-19 

iii. Follow all directives, policies and procedures to assist in maintaining a safe work 
environment 

iv. Provide proof of full COVID-19 vaccination to their manager or designee as described in 
Section 3.A of this Policy. 

v. If proof of full COVID-19 vaccination is not provided, complete weekly COVID-19 tests as 
directed by their manager or supervisor.   



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

5. Administration 
 

The County Administrator has the authority to end or amend the COVID-19 Vaccination and 
Testing policy after consulting with the County Health Officer, County Counsel, and Human 
Resources.  The Policy is under the general oversight and administration of the Human Resources 
Department.  Department Human Resources Liaisons should contact Employee and Labor 
Relations for questions regarding policy interpretations.  Human Resources will communicate 
information about the Policy and conduct necessary meet and confer meeting if the Policy is 
amended or ended. 

 
6. Definitions 

 
County - For purposes of this policy, County means all departments and agencies for which 
the Board Of Supervisors Acts as the Board of Directors or Commissioners or 
hiring/appointing authority, including the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open 
Space District, the Sonoma County Community Development Commission, the Sonoma 
County Fair and Exposition, Inc., the Sonoma County Employees’ Retirement Association, and 
the Sonoma County Water Agency. 

COVID-19 - Coronavirus disease, an infectious disease caused by the severe acute respiratory 
syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2). 
 
COVID-19 Protection Program (CPP) -  Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board 
(“OSHSB”) Emergency Temporary Standards (“ETS”) require that employers adopt and 
implement a COVID-19 Prevention Program (“CPP”) to provide employees a healthy and safe 
workplace as required under the California Occupational Safety and Health Act (Lab. Code §§ 
6300, et seq.) and associated regulations (8 C.C.R. § 3205). 
 
COVID-19 Symptoms – Symptoms of COVID-19 include the following: (1) fever of 100.4 
degrees Fahrenheit or higher or chills; (2) cough; (3) shortness of breath or difficulty breathing; 
(4) fatigue; (5) muscle or body aches; (6) headache; (7) new loss of taste or smell; (8) sore 
throat; (9) congestion or runny nose; (10) nausea or vomiting; or (11) diarrhea, unless a 
licensed health care professional determines the person’s symptoms were caused by a known 
condition other than COVID-19, or as outlined by the Center for Disease Control. 
 
COVID-19 Test - a viral test for SARS-CoV-2 that is both: (1) Approved by the United States 
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) or has an Emergency Use Authorization (“EUA”) from 
the FDA to diagnose current infection with the SARS-CoV-2 virus; and (2) Administered in 
accordance with the FDA approval or the FDA EUA as applicable. 
 
Department Head – Executives, Directors and Designees of the County of Sonoma, Sonoma 
County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, the Sonoma County Community 
Development Commission, the Sonoma County Fair and Exposition, Inc., the Sonoma County 
Employees’ Retirement Association, and the Sonoma County Water Agency. 
 
Employee – Full-time, part-time, extra help, probationary and permanent County and Agency 
employees, as well as executives and employees of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

and Open Space District, the Sonoma County Community Development Commission, the 
Sonoma County Fair and Exposition, Inc., the Sonoma County Employees’ Retirement 
Association, and the Sonoma County Water Agency. 
 
Fully Vaccinated - An employee is considered “fully” vaccinated when the employee received, 
at least 14 days prior, either the second dose in a two-dose COVID-19 vaccine series or a 
single-dose COVID-19 vaccine. Vaccines must be FDA approved; have an emergency use 
authorization from the FDA; or, for persons fully vaccinated outside the United States, be listed 
for emergency use by the World Health Organization (WHO). 
 
Performing Work – Performing assigned tasks or duties and/or providing services on behalf of 
the County at any site or location.  Employees on leave or extra-help breaks are not considered 
to be performing work and do not need to comply with this policy until they resume work 
activities. 
 
Vaccine: A COVID-19 Vaccine satisfies the requirements of this policy if: (i) the U.S. Food and 
Drug Administration (FDA) has issued a License or an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) for the 
vaccine or; (ii) the World Health Organization has approved Emergency Use Listing (EUL). 

  
7. Related Forms and Policies 

 
A. Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Verification Form 
B. Employee Testing Consent and Authorization Form 
C. Department COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) 
D. Administrative Policy 9-2 Information Technology Use and Security Policy Manual 
E. Guidelines for Management and Access of Employee Records 

https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CAO/Administrative-Policies/IT-Use-and-Security-Policy/
http://sharepoint-dept/sites/hrd/Shared%20Documents/ESS/Guidelines%20for%20Management%20and%20Access%20of%20Employee%20Records.pdf


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
SUBJECT: Water Rights 
   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
I have been in discussions with Matt Emrick with the Law Offices of Matthew 
Emrick and Steve Mack about the District’s water rights in light of the 
recently approved temporary urgency change to Sonoma County Water 
Agency’s (SCWA) water rights that lowered the flows in the lower Russian 
River to 35 cfs, and the recently issued Emergency Curtailment Order by the 
State Water Conservation and Resources Board (SWCRB) for the Upper and 
Lower Sections of the Russian River due to the current drought conditions. 
 
In light of these recent events, it has become evident that the District needs 
to better understand our water rights and our path forward to protect our 
rights.  Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) has postured such that they 
threaten our water rights during low flow conditions.  These issues are 
complex and require expert council.  Matt Emrick has consulted with the 
District before, in 2016 and 2017, and understands our water rights issues.  
 
Matt, Steve Mack, and I have met multiple times.  Matt and I are exploring 
historical documents and maps with promising results.  Matt has mainly 
focused on California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) records to connect 
the water rights transfers of the private water companies that supplied water 
in the District service area.  Matt has completed most of this work dating 
from the 1920s to 1992, when Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) 
was formed.  I have focused my research on two historical books that detail 
the formation and history, including the water use of the Guerneville and 
Monte Rio areas.  “Out of the River Mist” by C. Raymond Clar and 
“Guerneville Early Days, A History of the Lower Russian River” by John C. 
Schubert are full of historical references of water usage for the lumber mills, 
to fight the many fires that occurred over the years, and for potable use.  
These records date back to original water usage in Guerneville in  



WATER RIGHTS  2  
September 2, 2021 

 

1885.  This usage can also be corroborated by fire insurance maps that detail 
the water storage and distribution system used in that time period.   
 
Matt and I feel we can complete the historical documentation in the next few 
months.  This documentation would be cited in a legal opinion by Matt on 
behalf of the District to strengthen our Water Rights further.   
 
Another critical element of the scope of work by Matt is striving for a “County 
Solution” to the issues around SCWA threats to force SSWD to contract for 
water purchase in low flow conditions.  We started this conversation with 
Supervisor Hopkins on August 19 and hope to make further progress with 
that goal soon.  
 
 
 
 



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:  Discussion/ Action re State Revolving Fund Authorizing 
Resolution 21-16  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report on State Revolving Fund Application 
Authorizing Resolution to fund construction of an eight-inch ductile iron water 
main attached to the new Monte Rio Bridge.  Approve Resolution 21-16, Adopting 
the Authorizing Resolution. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $860,000.00 funding request. 
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
 Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) was informed in February of 
2021 by Sonoma County Public Works that the new Monte Rio Bridge project was 
partially designed.  The project is due to begin construction in 2024.  SSWD must 
pay for the design and construction of eight hundred feet of new eight-inch ductile 
iron water main attached to the new bridge and re-establish connections and 
abandon old ancillary infrastructure as part of this project.   
 
 SSWD has asked Supervisor Hopkins’ office to help identify funding for the 
project with little success.  We started the application process for State Revolving 
Fund (SRF) Grant Money.  A requirement of this funding application is an approved 
authorizing resolution.  Resolution 21-16 is the Authorizing Resolution for the SRF 
grant funding.  I recommend approval of this resolution supporting this grant 
funding of the SSWD portion of the Monte Rio Bridge project. 
  



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION NO:  21-16 

WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (The District) was informed in February 2021 that the 
District is responsible for the cost to attach our eight-inch ductile iron water main to the new Monte Rio 
Bridge that is scheduled to begin construction in 2024; and 

WHEREAS, The District is pursuing State Revolving Fund grant funding to support the water main 
attachment. 

RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AS 
FOLLOWS: 

The General Manager or designee is hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, a Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement from the 
State Water Resources Control Board for the planning, design, and construction of eight hundred feet of 
eight-inch ductile iron water main attached to the new Monte Rio Bridge. 

This Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide the assurances, 
certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, including executing a 
financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board and any amendments or 
changes thereto. 

The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent Sweetwater Springs 
Water District in carrying out the District’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including 
certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the District and compliance with applicable state and 
federal laws. 

CERTIFICATION 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 
adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma 
County, California, held on September 2, 2021, by the following vote. 

 

 

 Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Larry Spillane          

           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE AUGUST 19 MEETING WITH 
SUPERVISOR HOPKINS  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discussion and direction from Board. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
President Robb-Wilder, Director Holmer, and I met with Supervisor Hopkins 
on August 19 to discuss several District issues.  Sukey and Rich gave a 
detailed background of the District and the importance of our 8,000 
customers who are Supervisor Hopkins' constituents.  The GM discussed the 
need for improved and timely communication and coordination between 
Sonoma Public Works and the District.  We also emphasized a multi-agency, 
coordinated funding effort for the shared projects.  
 
The GM also urged Supervisor Hopkins to appoint an unincorporated (West) 
Sonoma County member to the Cities and Towns Committee (CTC) that helps 
make recommendations for the Community Development Commission HUD 
funding for infrastructure projects.   
 
The GM also discussed our water rights at a high level and the adversarial 
posturing by Sonoma Water.  I also emphasized the recent curtailment 
orders and gave background on the District's improved water loss and 
conservation efforts.  We asked for a future meeting to discuss this issue in 
more detail.   
 
Supervisor Hopkins was attentive, engaged, and suggested several action 
items going forward, including organizing an in-person meeting with Sonoma 
Public Works, PRMD, Sonoma Water, and other entities to stress improved 
coordination and communication around projects and funding.  She was 
already trying (unsuccessfully) to get a person appointed to the CTC.  She is 
also open to a two-part meeting, first with her, segueing to a meeting with 
SCWA to discuss water rights.  She also mentioned the property sale in 
Monte Rio and Vegetation grant funding as issues she could assist with.   
 
It was a productive meeting, and we look forward to continuing the dialogue.  
 



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

 
 Meeting Date: September 2, 2021 
 
 Subject:  Discussion/Action re CalPERS Valuation Report and District Unfunded Liability 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

None.  Information only. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

No additional impact.  For FY 2021-22, the District’s mandatory payment for CalPERS 
Unfunded Liability (UL) is $1,385. 
 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This staff report reviews the UL portion of the annual retirement valuation we receive in August 
from PERS.  This year’s report provides final UL figures for FY 2019-20 and preliminary figures 
for FY 2020-21. 
 
What is UL?   Unfunded Liability (UL) represents the shortfall between the District’s assets at 
PERS and the present value of estimated retirement costs for current and future District retirees.  
As a simple example, if PERS estimates it will cost $3,000,000 (adjusted for present value) to 
fund the retirement of existing and future District retirees, but our assets with PERS are only 
$2,500,000, the UL would be $500,000: 
 

Example: $3,000,000 - $2,500,000 = $500,000 
 
These figures can also be used to determine a retirement plan’s “funded status”.  In the example 
above, the District would be considered 83.3% funded: 
 

Example: $2,500,000/$3,000,000 = .833, or 83.3% 
 

The District’s recent UL history.  To address a UL that was rising to a level approaching $1 
million, District Operations borrowed money from the District’s Policy Reserve funds to make 
extra payments beyond the mandatory payment required by PERS.  Extra payments were made 
in the sum of $500,000 in FY 2019-20 and $500,000 in FY 2020-21.  The Policy Reserve funds 
are being reimbursed at a rate of $135,000/year, which began in FY 2020-21. 
 
UL information in this year’s valuation.  The attached Unfunded Liability Table shows how the 
extra payments have decreased our UL, which in turn increases our funded status.  As of FY 
2019-20, the District’s UL is $614,627, down from $986,313 in FY 2018-19.  The District’s funded 



status as of FY 2019-20 is 88.8%, up from 81% at the end of FY 2018-19.  This compares 
favorably to the funded status of PERS as a whole, which is 70.6% as of FY 2019-20. (See, 
PERS’ Investment and Pension Funding Facts at a Glance for FY 2019-20 attached.) 
 
As of FY 2020-21, PERS projects our UL will decrease to $106,927 (reflecting the second 
$500,000 extra payment).  However, this is just a preliminary figure that does not consider the 
impact of actual investment returns or changes to other assumptions.  Since the report was 
prepared, we now know that PERS achieved an investment return of 21.3% in FY 2020-21, far 
beyond the assumed return of 7%.  The surplus return will decrease our UL, but we don’t know 
yet how much.  We also now know that the favorable returns will trigger the PERS Risk 
Mitigation Plan, which calls for decreasing the assumed investment return from 7% to 6.8%.  
What we don’t know yet is how much that will cost the District.  Staff’s estimates are included on 
the table.  Staff is projecting that as of FY 2020-21, the District’s UL will actually be close 
to $0, and our funded status 100%.   
 
A fully funded retirement plan?!  Now that’s something to celebrate.  
 

 
 



A Recent History of Sweetwater's Unfunded Liability - 2% @ 55 Plan
Source: PERS Annual Valuation Report

U/L at Start of FY

Minimum 
Required 
Payment Extra Payment

Total UL 
Payments

Net toward 
principal

Unpaid interest 
(added to UL)

Initial FYE UL 
(Balance - 
Principal Pymts 
+ Unpd Interest)

Plus/Minus 
Impact on UL of 
Investment 
Returns

Inv. 
Return

Plus/Minus 
Impact on UL of 
Assumption 
Changes

U/L Carried to 
Next FY Year Notes:

FY 2013-14 $575,549.00 $16,715.00 $0.00 $16,715.00 $0.00 $25,835.00 $601,384.00 -$252,743.00 18.4% $152,063.00 $500,704.18 Assumed age of death increased

FY 2014-15 $500,704.00 $22,170.00 $0.00 $22,170.00 $0.00 $14,566.00 $515,270.00 $155,419.00 2.4% $0.00 $670,689.02  

FY 2015-16 $670,689.00 $19,980.00 $0.00 $19,980.00 $0.00 $29,587.00 $700,276.00 $201,792.00 0.6% $63,905.00 $965,973.01 Assumed investment return lowered from 
7.5% to 7.375%

FY 2016-17 $965,973.00 $28,871.00 $60,000.00 $88,871.00 $15,792.00 $0.00 $950,181.00 -$129,223.00 11.2% $73,504.00 $894,462.11 Assumed investment return lowered from 
7.375% to 7.25%

FY 2017-18 $894,462.00 $36,120.00 $75,883.00 $112,003.00 $39,578.00 $0.00 $854,884.00 -$20,698.00 8.6% $159,193.00 $993,379.09
Assumed investmenet return lowered from 7.25% 
to 7%.  : $123,964
Impact of PERS methodology change: $35,229.

FY 2018-19 $993,379.00 $46,731.00 $78,720.00 $125,451.00 $47,745.00 $0.00 $945,634.00 $40,679.00 6.7% $0.00 $986,313.07

FY 2019-20 $986,313.00 $54,360.00 $500,000.00 $554,360.00 $504,391.00 $0.00 $481,922.00 $132,706.00 4.7% $0.00 $614,628.05

FY 2020-21 $614,627.00 $33,694.00 $500,000.00 $533,694.00 $514,695.00 $0.00 $99,932.00 -$300,000 est. 21.3% $125,000 est.
Risk Mitigation Plan triggered:  Assumed 
investmenet return lowered from 7% to 6.8%: 
$125,000 est.

TOTALS: $69,988.00 $127,932.00 $448,665.00

Joined 2% @ 55 in May 2011
  
 

 









SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: District PARS Account Withdrawal Strategy  

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Leave our money in the PARS Balanced Fund and discuss the merits of adding a 
permanent PARS safe withdrawal strategy to the District’s Policies and Procedures 
such as the one suggested by staff at the August Board meeting.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

None at this time.   
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

The District invested $200,000 with PARS Public Agencies Post-Employment 
Benefits Trust (PARS Trust) in November of 2017, and the account has grown 
to about $273,000.  At the last meeting staff presented a strategy to consider 
for beginning to withdraw funds from the PARS Trust.  The strategy 
recommended by staff provided for a modest annual PARS Trust withdrawal 
that would allow the remaining invested funds to continue grow.  This topic 
was continued for further discussion at the September meeting, with direction 
given to staff to investigate whether or not the District can move funds 
between investment vehicles at PARS.     
 
Staff contacted PARS and confirmed that the District can move invested funds 
from our current investment – the Balanced Fund – to another investment 
choice, but the process takes a couple of weeks.   
 
The subject of which PARS investment choice to place our initial $200,000 
investment in was discussed at length at the October 2017 Board meeting.  
Rather than restate that discussion here, attached is the staff report from that 
meeting which is still relevant today.  It should be noted that our PARS 
investment is just a small fraction of our total District funds.  The bulk of our 
funds remain conservatively invested at the County.   
 



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 

 
Meeting Date: August 3, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT SERVICES 
(PARS) PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PROGRAM 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Receive a presentation by General Manager Steve Mack on 
District investment of funds held in the PARS Public Agencies Post-Employment Benefits 
Trust (PARS Trust) and provide direction to staff.    
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Varies, depending on the level of investment risk selected and the 
level of investment management selected. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Over the last few months, the District has investigated and ultimately decided to 
participate in the PARS Trust as one method of addressing pension costs and to fund 
the Trust with a portion of District reserves currently held at the County  Following 
direction given at the last Board Meeting, staff has completed and sent in the PARS 
Trust enrollment paperwork, and earlier in this meeting a check in the sum of $200,000 
consisting of policy reserves housed in the District's Building Fund at the County was 
approved to fund our Trust.   
 
This month's discussion focuses on our investment choices. 
 
PARS offers five (5) diversified portfolio choices (managed by HighMark Capital 
Management) representing a range of risk as shown below: 
 

 % 5-year Annualized 
Return ** 

(County of Sonoma) (1% or less) 

Conservative (15% Equities) 3.51% 

Moderately Conservative (30% Equities) 5.09% 

Moderate (50% Equities) 7.12% 



PARS Presentation  2  
October 5, 2017 

Balanced (60% Equities) 8.13% 

Capital Appreciation (75% Equities) 9.67% 

**  Does NOT include fund fees. 

 
Attached to this staff report is more detailed information about each of these portfolios 
as of 2017, 2nd Quarter.   
 
All of the portfolios project a higher annualized rate of return than the District has been 
getting at the County for the last few years.  The County's investments are in bonds 
and fixed income.  The PARS Trust portfolios invest a portion of funds in equities.  
Generally speaking, higher investment in equities means higher annualized returns, but 
also a higher risk of losing money.  In addition, each portfolio offers the choice of 
actively managed investment choices or a passive approach using index funds.  The 
actively managed portfolios carries with it fund fees that are approximately 40 basis 
points (0.40%) higher than the passive approach.  One would think an actively 
managed fund should achieve higher returns than a passively managed one, but history 
does not definitively bear this theory out. 
 
Which portfolio should the District choose?  The question of how much risk to take 
was considered by the Board when the District began participation in the CERBT 
program, a Trust similar to the PARS Trust that the District joined to address retiree 
health costs.  For that program, the District picked a portfolio strategy that invests 65% 
in Equities/REITS with an expected average annual return of 7.28%.  The closest 
counterpart to this portfolio strategy with PARS is the Balanced Portfolio (60% equities).  
In a nod to the Board discussion when the District joined CERBT, and because the level 
of risk seems about right, staff is recommending investment in the Balanced Portfolio  
 
Staff also strongly recommends choosing the passive approach over an actively 
managed fund.  The possibility of slightly higher returns seems more than outweighed 
by the additional fees of an actively managed fund, fees which must be paid even in 
years in which the fund loses money. 
 
Staff has discussed investment strategies with Andrew Brown, a financial advisor with 
Highmark Capital who manages the PARS accounts, who pointed out that the fund 
choice should be considered in conjunction with projected withdrawals from the 
account.  Given our plan to leave the funds sit for the near future, either the Balanced 
fund or the Moderate portfolio would both be sensible choices.  He also noted that we 
can instruct PARS to have the funds invested over a 3-4 month period rather than all at 
one time to smooth any near term market volatility. 























General Manager’s Report   Page 1 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 
 

SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 

Meeting Date: September 2, 2021  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

1.  Laboratory Testing/ Regulatory Compliance: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD 
water meets all known State and Federal water quality standards.   

 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July were 26,302 units (60.4 AF Guerneville 

cycle), and production was 67.91 AF.  One year ago, sales were higher, and production 
was higher (65.6 AF and 79.6 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production, and % 
difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend was down this month as a 
running twelve-month average (19.8%).  Water conservation has increased over the last 
two months during the declared drought.  In June, production was down 10%, and sales 
were down 3.3%.  In July, production was down 14.7%, and sales were down 8%. 

  
 Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 

29%, and sales have dropped 18%, although water sales and production are up during the 
COVID period.  The water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in the 15-20% 
range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to capital projects.   

 
3.  Leaks:  In August, we had five total leak repairs with 25 hours on them.  One leak was in 

Guerneville, and four were in Monte Rio.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is fewer 
leaks and more person-hours than the prior month and fewer leaks and fewer person-hours 
than August one year ago (9 and 49).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately 
with a total leak line as well.  For Calendar Year 2020, total leaks were 99, up from 78 in 
2019.  That was a drought year following a very wet year, and many of the repairs were 



General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 

due to ground shifting.  Also, 52 leaks were on mains, and 48 were on service lines.  In 
2019 47 leaks were on mains, and 31 were on service lines.     Leaks may go up during this 
second consecutive drought year.  Looking at the leaks chart over the last ten years, we 
have come down from around 300 leaks per year to under 100 - quite a difference and very 
noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - address ongoing issues with in-house 
projects instead of chasing leaks every day.   

   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  August rainfall was .00”, which is lower than the long-term 

average month and puts the yearly total (15.73”) well below the long-term annual average.  
We are experiencing a second consecutive drought year in 2021.  Governor Newsom 
declared a drought emergency for Sonoma and Mendocino Counties, and Sonoma County 
has issued a drought emergency also.  SSWD was not given a curtailment order in August.  
I have posted an updated notice on our website on the drought and conservation.       

  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were two in-house construction projects in 

August.  A saddle and meter stop were replaced on 15731 Drake Rd, and an old copper 
service was replaced with PVC at 16650, Hwy 116, both in Guerneville. 
 

6.   Lower Russian River Community Advisory Group Governance Meeting:  There was 
a virtual meeting of the LRRCAG on August 26th to discuss Wastewater solutions for 
Monte Rio and Villa Grande.  The RFP is out for the Feasibility Study consultant.  
Comments were submitted, and Steve Trippe testified on the TMDL rule at the regional 
SWRCB meeting.  

 
7.    Personnel:  Jamin Reed resigned from his Maintenance Operator I position effective 

September 3, 2021.  We have advertised the vacant position and are interviewing 
applicants. 

 
8.     Monte Rio Bridge: I met with Johannes Hoevertsz with Sonoma County Public Works, 

and he assured me that their funding would not pay for the water main attachment.  I also 
requested he search their records for any agreements or encroachment permits for our water 
main attachment dating back to 1934, when the existing bridge was constructed.  We did 
discuss improving coordination and communication of County projects from now on.  
Unfortunately, I have not received any replies to multiple follow-up emails.  Rachel 
Hundley has drafted formal information requests for these records. 

 
9.     CDBG Funding:  The Board of Supervisors met on July 27 and approved the 

Community Development Commission annual plan that includes $705,000 for our FY 
2020-2021 CIP for Old River Rd and Woodland Drive water main replacement.  We have 
received guidance for contract and RFP language and should sign the grant agreement in 
early September.  We intend on getting the entire project out to bid as early as possible. 

 



General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 
10.     Flume Pilot Project: We kicked off the Flume water leak detection device pilot program 

and have advertised it on Next Door.  I have a press release to the local papers.  We also 
have a notice on our website and a blurb on our bills.  The Sonoma West online publication 
had our press release included.  I also sent out the press release to the local chambers of 
commerce.  We have a minimal subscription to date. 

 
11.    Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for September 2021.   

 
12.      Tax Lien List Approval: We continue to take a wait-and-see position on tax liens for 

delinquent bills, with the new executive order lifting the moratorium on customer cut-offs 
for delinquent payment at the end of September 2021. 

 
13.      Economic Impact of no Disconnects for Non-payment:  The total uncollected amount 

in this Guerneville billing cycle due to non-payment with the non-Disconnect Executive 
Order is $6,835.88.  This amount is tracking downward.  We will continue to follow this 
amount. 

 
 

          



General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 

 
 

 



General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 



General Manager’s Report   Page 6 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



General Manager’s Report  Page 7 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 

 
Tracking the Economic Impact of Suspending Water Disconnects for  
Non-payment 
 

EVEN CYCLE ODD CYCLE 

Billing Date 

# of Customers 
whose prior bill 
was still unpaid 
when next bill 
mailed 

$ Value of Past 
Due Amounts** 
(including 
unpaid 
customer 
deposits) 

Billing Date 

# of Customers 
whose prior bill 
was still unpaid 
when next bill 
mailed 

$ Value of Past Due 
Amounts** 
(including unpaid 
customer deposits) 

2/15/2020 
(Historical 
disconnect 
procedure) 

0 $0 

3/15/2020 
(SB 998 
extends time 
before 
disconnect) 

10 $1,565 

4/15/2020 
(Exec. Order 
N-42-20: 
Disconnects 
completely 
suspended) 

24 $4,096 5/15/2020 5 $594.02 

6/15/2020 9 $2,947.56 7/15/2020 8 $1,261.02 

8/15/2020 7 $2,464.32 

9/15/2020 
(Suspended 
delinquency 
process due 
to wildfire.) 

57 $7,646.52 

10/15/2020 16 $5,094.43 11/15/2020 18 $4,406.13 

12/15/2020 23 $7,260.48 1/15/2021 20 $3,766.59 

2/15/2021 35 

$11,140.50* 
($3,555 of this 
total is one 
customer) 

3/15/2021 18 $6,203.05 

4/15/2021 28 $11,762.54 5/15/2021 16 4040.58 

6/15/2021 19 $8,670.96 7/15/2021 7 $3,542.24 

8/15/2021 14 $6,835.88    

 
As of 7/15/2021, 8 customers are in COVID-19 Agreements.  These customers are not included in the numbers above if their COVID 
Agreements are in good standing. 
 
 



General Manager’s Report  Page 8 of 8 
September 2, 2021 
 

 

 

Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 FY23+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month

Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date

Budget Preparation
·        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
·        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
·        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
·        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
·        Approve Budget

Capital Projects
·        Update/Review District CIP
·        2021 CIP Planning

·        2021 CIP Design

·        2021 CIP Construction
Water Rights SCWA 
Emergency Response Plan Review
Policies and Procedures

·        Other Policy
·        Overall Review

District Annual Review

Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart

By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


	AAAgenda  09-02-2021
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE
	ADJOURN
	Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals

	AAAMinutes 08-05-2021
	I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.)
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)
	III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) *
	VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:33 p.m.)
	VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS
	(9:40 p.m.)

	A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance Evaluation
	Title: General Manager
	ADJOURN

	AAMinutes 08-26-2021 Special
	I. CALL TO ORDER (3:32 p.m.)
	II. PUBLIC COMMENT (3:32 p.m.)
	III. ADMINISTRATIVE (3:32 p.m.) *
	ADJOURN

	Item V-A- Water Shortage Contingency Plan
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-B - COVID Guidelines Discussion
	Item V-B - Discussion and Direction for COVID Guidelines
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-B.1 - ERPFull - Current 08 09 2021
	Updated September 23, 2020August 09, 2021
	Sweetwater Springs Water District
	Emergency Response Plan
	Section No. 1
	Administrative

	Resolution No. 09-26
	Section No. 2
	District Chain of Command/Staffing

	Section No. 3
	Phone Lists

	Section No. 4
	General Emergency Plan

	Section No. 5
	Water Quality Notification Plan - Guerneville
	Water Quality Emergency Notification Plan Updated September 2020
	Office of Emergency Services (24 hrs) at (916) 262-1621


	Section No. 6
	Water Quality Notification Plan – Monte Rio
	Office of Emergency Services (24 hrs) at (916) 262-1621


	Section No. 7
	Boil Water Orders

	[Date]
	BOIL WATER ORDER
	[Date]
	CANCELLATION OF BOIL WATER ORDER
	Sweetwater Springs Water District
	UNSAFE WATER ALERT
	Sweetwater Springs Water District (XX System) water is possibly contaminated.

	DO NOT DRINK YOUR WATER
	OPTIONS
	SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT      DATE___________
	CANCELLATION OF UNSAFE WATER ALERT
	Section No. 8
	Office Power Outage Procedures and Distribution System Power Outage/ Emergency Generator Procedures

	Power Outages at the District office (switching to Generator power)
	Power Outages in the Distribution System(s) (Deploying and Switching to Generator power)
	Section No. 9
	El Bonita Power Outage Procedures
	Procedure For Switching From PG &E to Generator Power
	AT GENERATOR
	Procedure For Switching From Generator Power back to PG&E Power And for Shutting Off Generator


	Section No. 10
	Monte Rio Power Outage Procedures
	Procedure For Switching From PG&E to Generator Power
	Procedure For Switching From Generator Power back to PG&E Power And for Shutting Off Generator


	Section No. 11
	Fire Emergency Plan

	Section No. 12
	Earthquake Emergency Plan
	Emergency Plan:  Notify Supervisor
	Follow the same guidelines as set forth in the General Emergency Plan


	Section No. 13
	Follow the same guidelines as set forth in the General Emergency Plan

	Section No. 14
	We are currently operating under Risk Level 3, due to numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 in Sonoma County and surrounding counties.
	We are currently operating under Risk Level 3, due to numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 in Sonoma County and surrounding counties.
	Operations:
	Administration:


	Item V-B.2 - Sonoma County COVID Vaccination and Testing Policy

	Item V-C - Water Rights
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-D - RES 21-16 State Revolving Fund Authorization
	Item V-D - Approval of Resolution 21-16 Authorizing SRF Grant Funding for Monte Rio Bridge Water Main Attachment
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-D.1 - Resolution 21-16 State Revolving Fund Authorizing Resolution

	Item V-E- Supervisor Hopkins Meeting
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-F - PERS Valuation Report and District UL
	Item V-F - District CalPERS Unfunded Pension Liability
	Item V-F.1 - PERS UL History
	Sheet1 (2)

	Item V-F.2 - PERS FY 2019-20 Facts at a Glance

	Item V-G - PARS Withdrawal Strategy
	Item V-G - PARS Withdrawal strategy
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021

	Item V-G.1 - Prior staff report re original PARS investment choice
	Item V-C - PARS Trust investment choice
	Item V-C.1 - PARS Highmark portfolios performance 2Q 2017


	Item VI - General Manager Report
	Meeting Date: September 2, 2021




